**PROCUREMENT DOCUMENTS**

**Bidding Document for**

**Procurement of Goods**

**Local and Regional Competitiveness Project**

**Procurement and installation of Smart Equipment for Municipality of Veles**

**LRCP-1/18-34-NCB-G-1**

**Purchaser: Government of the Republic of North Macedonia/Municipality of Veles**

**Country: Republic of North Macedonia**

**Issued on: 19.01.2021**

**Table of Contents**

PART 1 – Bidding Procedures 1

Section I. Instructions to Bidders 3

Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS) 29

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria 35

Section IV. Bidding Forms 39

Section V. Eligible Countries 51

Section VI. Bank Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices 53

PART 2 – Supply Requirements 57

Section VII. Schedule of Requirements 59

PART 3 - Contract 83

Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract 85

Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract 109

Section X. Contract Forms 119

# PART 1 – Bidding Procedures

|  |
| --- |
| Section I. Instructions to Bidders |

**Table of Clauses**

A. General 5

1. Scope of Bid 5

2. Source of Funds 5

3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices 5

4. Eligible Bidders 6

5. Eligible Goods and Related Services 8

B. Contents of Bidding Document 9

6. Sections of Bidding Document 9

7. Clarification of Bidding Documents 10

8. Amendment of Bidding Document 10

C. Preparation of Bids 10

9. Cost of Bidding 10

10. Language of Bid 10

11. Documents Comprising the Bid 11

12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules 11

13. Alternative Bids 11

14. Bid Prices and Discounts 12

15. Currencies of Bid and Payment 14

16. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Conformity of the Goods and Related Services 14

17. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder 15

18. Period of Validity of Bids 15

19. Bid Security 16

20. Format and Signing of Bid 18

D. Submission and Opening of Bids 18

21. Sealing and Marking of Bids 18

22. Deadline for Submission of Bids 19

23. Late Bids 19

24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids 19

25. Bid Opening 20

E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids 21

26. Confidentiality 21

27. Clarification of Bids 22

28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions 22

29. Determination of Responsiveness 22

30. Nonconformities, Errors and Omissions 23

31. Correction of Arithmetical Errors 23

32. Conversion to Single Currency 24

33. Margin of Preference 24

34. Evaluation of Bids 24

35. Comparison of Bids 25

36. Qualification of the Bidder 25

37. Purchaser’s Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids 26

F. Award of Contract 26

38. Award Criteria 26

39. Purchaser’s Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award 26

40. Notification of Award 26

41. Signing of Contract 27

42. Performance Security 27

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **Section I. Instructions to Bidders** | |
|  | 1. General |
| 1. Scope of Bid | * 1. In connection with the Invitation for Bids, **specified in the Bid Data Sheet (BDS),** the Purchaser, **as specified in the BDS,** issues these Bidding Documents for the supply of Goods and Related Services incidental thereto as specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. The name, identification and number of lots (contracts) of this International Competitive Bidding (ICB) procurement are **specified in the BDS.**   2. Throughout these Bidding Documents:  the term “in writing” means communicated in written form (e.g. by mail, e-mail, fax, telex) with proof of receipt;if the context so requires, “singular” means “plural” and vice versa; and“day” means calendar day. |
| 2. Source of Funds | * 1. The Borrower or Recipient (hereinafter called “Borrower”) **specified in the BDS** has applied for or received financing (hereinafter called “funds”) from the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development or the International Development Association (hereinafter called “the Bank”)in an amount **specified in BDS,** toward the project named **in BDS** The Borrower intends to apply a portion of the funds to eligible payments under the contract for which these Bidding Documents are issued.   2. Payment by the Bank will be made only at the request of the Borrower and upon approval by the Bank in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Loan (or other financing) Agreement. The Loan (or other financing) Agreement prohibits a withdrawal from the Loan (or other financing) account for the purpose of any payment to persons or entities, or for any import of goods, if such payment or import, to the knowledge of the Bank, is prohibited by decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations. No party other than the Borrower shall derive any rights from the Loan (or other financing) Agreement or have any claim to the proceeds of the Loan (or other financing). |
| 3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices | 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Section VI. 3.2 In further pursuance of this policy, Bidders shall permit and shall cause its agents (where declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers and to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records and other documents relating to the submission of the application, bid submission (in case prequalified), and contract performance (in the case of award), and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank. |
| 4. Eligible Bidders | * 1. A Bidder may be a firm that is a private entity, a government-owned entity—subject to ITB 4.5—or any combination of such entities in the form of a joint venture (JV) under an existing agreement or with the intent to enter into such an agreement supported by a letter of intent. In the case of a joint venture, all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract in accordance with the Contract terms. The JV shall nominate a Representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. **Unless specified in the BDS**, there is no limit on the number of members in a JV.   2. A Bidder shall not have a conflict of interest. Any Bidder found to have a conflict of interest shall be disqualified. A Bidder may be considered to have a conflict of interest for the purpose of this bidding process, if the Bidder:  directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by or is under common control with another Bidder; orreceives or has received any direct or indirect subsidy from another Bidder; orhas the same legal representative as another Bidder; orhas a relationship with another Bidder, directly or through common third parties, that puts it in a position to influence the bid of another Bidder, or influence the decisions of the Purchaser regarding this bidding process; orparticipates in more than one bid in this bidding process. Participation by a Bidder in more than one Bid will result in the disqualification of all Bids in which such Bidder is involved. However, this does not limit the inclusion of the same subcontractor in more than one bid; orany of its affiliates participated as a consultant in the preparation of the design or technical specifications of the works that are the subject of the bid; orany of its affiliates has been hired (or is proposed to be hired) by the Purchaser or Borrower for the Contract implementation; orwould be providing goods, works, or non-consulting services resulting from or directly related to consulting services for the preparation or implementation of the project specified in the BDS ITB 2.1 that it provided or were provided by any affiliate that directly or indirectly controls, is controlled by, or is under common control with that firm; orhas a close business or family relationship with a professional staff of the Borrower (or of the project implementing agency, or of a recipient of a part of the loan) who: (i) are directly or indirectly involved in the preparation of the bidding documents or specifications of the contract, and/or the bid evaluation process of such contract; or (ii) would be involved in the implementation or supervision of such contract unless the conflict stemming from such relationship has been resolved in a manner acceptable to the Bank throughout the procurement process and execution of the contract  * 1. A Bidder may have the nationality of any country, subject to the restrictions pursuant to ITB 4.7. A Bidder shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if the Bidder is constituted, incorporated or registered in and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country, as evidenced by its articles of incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association) and its registration documents, as the case may be. This criterion also shall apply to the determination of the nationality of proposed sub-contractors or sub-consultants for any part of the Contract including related Services.   2. A Bidder that has been sanctioned by the Bank in accordance with the above ITB 3.1, including in accordance with the Bank’s Guidelines on Preventing and Combating Corruption in Projects Financed by IBRD Loans and IDA Credits and Grants (“Anti-Corruption Guidelines”), shall be ineligible to be prequalified for, bid for, or be awarded a Bank-financed contract or benefit from a Bank-financed contract, financially or otherwise, during such period of time as the Bank shall have determined. The list of debarred firms and individuals is available at the electronic address **specified in the BDS.**   3. Bidders that are Government-owned enterprises or institutions in the Purchaser’s Country may participate only if they can establish that they (i) are legally and financially autonomous (ii) operate under commercial law, and (iii) are not dependent agencies of the Purchaser. To be eligible, a government-owned enterprise or institution shall establish to the Bank’s satisfaction, through all relevant documents, including its Charter and other information the Bank may request, that it: (i) is a legal entity separate from the government (ii) does not currently receive substantial subsidies or budget support; (iii) operates like any commercial enterprise, and, inter alia, is not obliged to pass on its surplus to the government, can acquire rights and liabilities, borrow funds and be liable for repayment of its debts, and can be declared bankrupt; and (iv) is not bidding for a contract to be awarded by the department or agency of the government which under their applicable laws or regulations is the reporting or supervisory authority of the enterprise or has the ability to exercise influence or control over the enterprise or institution.   4. A Bidder shall not be under suspension from bidding by the Purchaser as the result of the operation of a Bid–Securing Declaration.   5. Firms and individuals may be ineligible if so indicated in Section V and (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower’s country prohibits commercial relations with that country, provided that the Bank is satisfied that such exclusion does not preclude effective competition for the supply of goods or the contracting of works or services required; or (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower’s country prohibits any import of goods or contracting of works or services from that country, or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country.   6. A Bidder shall provide such evidence of eligibility satisfactory to the Purchaser, as the Purchaser shall reasonably request. |
| 5. Eligible Goods and Related Services | * 1. All the Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank may have their origin in any country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries.   2. For purposes of this Clause, the term “goods” includes commodities, raw material, machinery, equipment, and industrial plants; and “related services” includes services such as insurance, installation, training, and initial maintenance.   3. The term “origin” means the country where the goods have been mined, grown, cultivated, produced, manufactured or processed; or, through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components. |
|  | B. Contents of Bidding Document |
| 6. Sections of Bidding Document | * 1. The Bidding Documents consist of Parts 1, 2, and 3, which include all the Sections indicated below, and should be read in conjunction with any Addenda issued in accordance with ITB 8.   **PART 1 Bidding Procedures**   * Section I. Instructions to Bidders (ITB) * Section II. Bidding Data Sheet (BDS) * Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria * Section IV. Bidding Forms * Section V. Eligible Countries * Section VI. Bank Policy-Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices |
|  | **PART 2 Supply Requirements**   * Section VII. Schedule of Requirements   **PART 3 Contract**   * Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract (GCC) * Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) * Section X. Contract Forms |
|  | * 1. The Invitation for Bids issued by the Purchaser is not part of the Bidding Document.   2. Unless obtained directly from the Purchaser, the Purchaser is not responsible for the completeness of the document, responses to requests for clarification, the Minutes of the pre-Bid meeting (if any), or Addenda to the Bidding Document in accordance with ITB 8. In case of any contradiction, documents obtained directly from the Purchaser shall prevail.   3. The Bidder is expected to examine all instructions, forms, terms, and specifications in the Bidding Documents and to furnish with its Bid all information or documentation as is required by the Bidding Documents. |
| 7. Clarification of Bidding Documents | * 1. A Bidder requiring any clarification of the Bidding Document shall contact the Purchaser in writing at the Purchaser’s address **specified in the** **BDS**. The Purchaser will respond in writing to any request for clarification, provided that such request is received prior to the deadline for submission of bids within a period **specified in the BDS.** The Purchaser shall forward copies of its response to all Bidders who have acquired the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 6.3, including a description of the inquiry but without identifying its source. If so **specified in the BDS**, the Purchaser shall also promptly publish its response at the web page **identified in the BDS**. Should the clarification result in changes to the essential elements of the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser shall amend the Bidding Documents following the procedure under ITB 8 and ITB 22.2. |
| 8. Amendment of Bidding Document | * 1. At any time prior to the deadline for submission of bids, the Purchaser may amend the Bidding Documents by issuing addenda.   2. Any addendum issued shall be part of the Bidding Documents and shall be communicated in writing to all who have obtained the Bidding Documents from the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 6.3. The Purchaser shall also promptly publish the addendum on the Purchaser’s web page in accordance with ITB 7.1.   3. To give prospective Bidders reasonable time in which to take an addendum into account in preparing their bids, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids, pursuant to ITB 22.2. |
|  | C. Preparation of Bids |
| 9. Cost of Bidding | * 1. The Bidder shall bear all costs associated with the preparation and submission of its bid, and the Purchaser shall not be responsible or liable for those costs, regardless of the conduct or outcome of the bidding process. |
| 10. Language of Bid | * 1. The Bid, as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the bid exchanged by the Bidder and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language **specified in the BDS.** Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Bid may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages into the language **specified in the** **BDS,** in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Bid, such translation shall govern. |
| 11. Documents Comprising the Bid | * 1. The Bid shall comprise the following:  Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12;  * + 1. completed schedules , in accordance with ITB 12 and 14  Bid Security or Bid-Securing Declaration, in accordance with ITB 19.1;alternative bids, if permissible, in accordance with ITB 13;written confirmation authorizing the signatory of the Bid to commit the Bidder, in accordance with ITB 20.2;documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder’s qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted;documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 17 establishing the Bidder’s eligibility to bid;documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16, that the Goods and Related Services to be supplied by the Bidder are of eligible origin;documentary evidence in accordance with ITB 16 and 30, that the Goods and Related Services conform to the Bidding Documents;any other document **required in the BDS.** 11.2 In addition to the requirements under ITB 11.1, bids submitted by a JV shall include a copy of the Joint Venture Agreement entered into by all members. Alternatively, a letter of intent to execute a Joint Venture Agreement in the event of a successful bid shall be signed by all members and submitted with the bid, together with a copy of the proposed Agreement.  11.3 The Bidder shall furnish in the Letter of Bid information on commissions and gratuities, if any, paid or to be paid to agents or any other party relating to this Bid. |
| 12. Letter of Bid and Price Schedules | * 1. The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shall be prepared using the relevant forms furnished in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The forms must be completed without any alterations to the text, and no substitutes shall be accepted except as provided under ITB 20.2. All blank spaces shall be filled in with the information requested. |
| 13. Alternative Bids | * 1. Unless otherwise **specified in the** **BDS,** alternative bids shall not be considered. |
| 14. Bid Prices and Discounts | * 1. The prices and discounts quoted by the Bidder in the Letter of Bid and in the Price Schedules shall conform to the requirements specified below.   2. All lots (contracts) and items must be listed and priced separately in the Price Schedules.   3. The price to be quoted in the Letter of Bid in accordance with ITB 12.1 shall be the total price of the bid, excluding any discounts offered.   4. The Bidder shall quote any discounts and indicate the methodology for their application in the Letter of Bid, in accordance with ITB 12.1.   5. Prices quoted by the Bidder shall be fixed during the Bidder’s performance of the Contract and not subject to variation on any account, **unless otherwise specified in the BDS** A bid submitted with an adjustable price quotation shall be treated as nonresponsive and shall be rejected, pursuant to ITB 29. However, if in accordance with the BDS, prices quoted by the Bidder shall be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract, a bid submitted with a fixed price quotation shall not be rejected, but the price adjustment shall be treated as zero.   6. If so specified in ITB 1.1, bids are being invited for individual lots (contracts) or for any combination of lots (packages). Unless otherwise **specified in the BDS,** prices quoted shall correspond to 100 % of the items specified for each lot and to 100% of the quantities specified for each item of a lot. Bidders wishing to offer discounts for the award of more than one Contract shall specify in their bid the price reductions applicable to each package, or alternatively, to individual Contracts within the package. Discounts shall be submitted in accordance with ITB 14.4 provided the bids for all lots (contracts) are opened at the same time.   7. The terms EXW, CIP, and other similar terms shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms, published by The International Chamber of Commerce, **as specified in the** **BDS.**   8. Prices shall be quoted as specified in each Price Schedule included in Section IV, Bidding Forms. The dis-aggregation of price components is required solely for the purpose of facilitating the comparison of bids by the Purchaser. This shall not in any way limit the Purchaser’s right to contract on any of the terms offered. In quoting prices, the Bidder shall be free to use transportation through carriers registered in any eligible country, in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Similarly, the Bidder may obtain insurance services from any eligible country in accordance with Section V, Eligible Countries. Prices shall be entered in the following manner:  For Goods manufactured in the Purchaser’s Country: (i) the price of the Goods quoted EXW (ex-works, ex-factory, ex warehouse, ex showroom, or off-the-shelf, as applicable), including all customs duties and sales and other taxes already paid or payable on the components and raw material used in the manufacture or assembly of the Goods;  (ii) any Purchaser’s Country sales tax and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and  (iii) the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the** **BDS.**   1. For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country, to be imported: 2. the price of the Goods, quoted CIP named place of destination, in the Purchaser’s Country, as **specified in the** **BDS;** 3. the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods from the named place of destination to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the** **BDS;** 4. For Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country, already imported: 5. the price of the Goods, including the original import value of the Goods; plus any mark-up (or rebate); plus any other related local cost, and custom duties and other import taxes already paid or to be paid on the Goods already imported. 6. the custom duties and other import taxes already paid (need to be supported with documentary evidence) or to be paid on the Goods already imported; 7. the price of the Goods, obtained as the difference between (i) and (ii) above; 8. any Purchaser’s Country sales and other taxes which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder; and 9. the price for inland transportation, insurance, and other local services required to convey the Goods from the named place of destination to their final destination (Project Site) **specified in the** **BDS.** 10. for Related Services, other than inland transportation and other services required to convey the Goods to their final destination, whenever such Related Services are specified in the Schedule of Requirements:     1. the price of each item comprising the Related Services (inclusive of any applicable taxes). |
| 15. Currencies of Bid and Payment | * 1. The currency(ies) of the bid and the currency(ies) of payments shall be as specified in the BDS*.*The Bidder shall quote in the currency of the Purchaser’s Country the portion of the bid price that corresponds to expenditures incurred in the currency of the Purchaser’s country, unless otherwise **specified in the BDS.**   2. The Bidder may express the bid price in any currency. If the Bidder wishes to be paid in a combination of amounts in different currencies, it may quote its price accordingly but shall use no more than three foreign currencies in addition to the currency of the Purchaser’s Country. |
| 16. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Conformity of the Goods and Related Services | * 1. To establish the eligibility of the Goods and Related Services in accordance with ITB 5, Bidders shall complete the country of origin declarations in the Price Schedule Forms, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.   2. To establish the conformity of the Goods and Related Services to the Bidding Documents, the Bidder shall furnish as part of its Bid the documentary evidence that the Goods conform to the technical specifications and standards specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.   3. The documentary evidence may be in the form of literature, drawings or data, and shall consist of a detailed item by item description of the essential technical and performance characteristics of the Goods and Related Services, demonstrating substantial responsiveness of the Goods and Related Services to the technical specification, and if applicable, a statement of deviations and exceptions to the provisions of the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements.   4. The Bidder shall also furnish a list giving full particulars, including available sources and current prices of spare parts, special tools, etc., necessary for the proper and continuing functioning of the Goods during the period **specified in the** **BDS** following commencement of the use of the goods by the Purchaser.   5. Standards for workmanship, process, material, and equipment, as well as references to brand names or catalogue numbers specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements, are intended to be descriptive only and not restrictive. The Bidder may offer other standards of quality, brand names, and/or catalogue numbers, provided that it demonstrates, to the Purchaser’s satisfaction, that the substitutions ensure substantial equivalence or are superior to those specified in the Section VII, Schedule of Requirements. |
| 17. Documents Establishing the Eligibility and Qualifications of the Bidder | * 1. To establish Bidder’s their eligibility in accordance with ITB 4, Bidders shall complete the Letter of Bid, included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.   2. The documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications to perform the contract if its bid is accepted shall establish to the Purchaser’s satisfaction:      1. that, if **required in the** **BDS,** a Bidder that does not manufacture or produce the Goods it offers to supply shall submit the Manufacturer’s Authorization using the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms to demonstrate that it has been duly authorized by the manufacturer or producer of the Goods to supply these Goods in the Purchaser’s Country;      2. that, if **required in the** **BDS,** in case of a Bidder not doing business within the Purchaser’s Country, the Bidder is or will be (if awarded the contract) represented by an Agent in the country equipped and able to carry out the Supplier’s maintenance, repair and spare parts-stocking obligations prescribed in the Conditions of Contract and/or Technical Specifications; and      3. that the Bidder meets each of the qualification criterion specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. |
| 18. Period of Validity of Bids | * 1. Bids shall remain valid for the period **specified in the** **BDS** after the bid submission deadline date prescribed by the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 22.1. A bid valid for a shorter period shall be rejected by the Purchaser as nonresponsive.   2. In exceptional circumstances, prior to the expiration of the bid validity period, the Purchaser may request bidders to extend the period of validity of their bids. The request and the responses shall be made in writing. If a Bid Security is requested in accordance with ITB Clause 19, it shall also be extended for a corresponding period. A Bidder may refuse the request without forfeiting its Bid Security. A Bidder granting the request shall not be required or permitted to modify its bid, except as provided in ITB 18.3.   3. If the award is delayed by a period exceeding fifty-six (56) days beyond the expiry of the initial bid validity, the Contract price shall be determined as follows:      1. In the case of fixed price contracts, the Contract price shall be the bid price adjusted by the factor **specified in the** **BDS**.      2. In the case of adjustable price contracts, no adjustment shall be made.      3. In any case, bid evaluation shall be based on the bid price without taking into consideration the applicable correction from those indicated above. |
| 19. Bid Security | * 1. The Bidder shall furnish as part of its bid, either a Bid-Securing Declaration or a bid security, as **specified in the** **BDS,** in original form and, in the case of a bid security**.** In the amount and currency **specified in the BDS.**   2. A Bid Securing Declaration shall use the form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms.   3. If a bid security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the bid security shall be a demand guarantee in any of the following forms at the Bidder’s option :  an unconditional guarantee issued by a bank or financial institution (such as an insurance, bonding or surety company);an irrevocable letter of credit;a cashier’s or certified check; oranother security **specified in the BDS**, from a reputable source from an eligible country. If the unconditional guarantee is issued by a financial institution located outside the Purchaser’s Country, the issuing financial institution shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser’s Country to make it enforceable. In the case of a bank guarantee, the bid security shall be submitted either using the Bid Security Form included in Section IV, Bidding Forms, or in another substantially similar format approved by the Purchaser prior to bid submission. The bid security shall be valid for twenty-eight (28) days beyond the original validity period of the bid, or beyond any period of extension if requested under ITB 18.2.   * 1. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, any bid not accompanied by a substantially responsive Bid Security shall be rejected by the Purchaser as non-responsive.   2. If a Bid Security is specified pursuant to ITB 19.1, the Bid Security of unsuccessful Bidders shall be returned as promptly as possible upon the successful Bidder’s signing the contract and furnishing the Performance Security pursuant to ITB 42.   3. The Bid Security of the successful Bidder shall be returned as promptly as possible once the successful Bidder has signed the contract and furnished the required performance security.   4. The Bid Security may be forfeited or the Bid Securing Declaration executed:  if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or any extension thereto provided by the Bidder ; orif the successful Bidder fails to:sign the Contract in accordance with ITB41; orfurnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42.  * 1. The bid security or Bid- Securing Declaration of a JV must be in the name of the JV that submits the bid. If the JV has not been legally constituted into a legally enforceable JV at the time of bidding, the bid security or Bid-Securing Declaration shall be in the names of all future members as named in the letter of intent referred to in ITB 4.1 and ITB 11.2.   2. If a bid security is not required in the BDS, pursuant to ITB 19.1, and   3. if a Bidder withdraws its bid during the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid, or   4. if the successful Bidder fails to: sign the Contract in accordance with ITB 41; or furnish a performance security in accordance with ITB 42;   the Borrower may, **if provided for in the BDS**, declare the Bidder ineligible to be awarded a contract by the Purchaser for a period of time **as stated in the BDS**. |
| 20. Format and Signing of Bid | * 1. The Bidder shall prepare one original of the documents comprising the bid as described in ITB 11 and clearly mark it “Original.” Alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, shall be clearly marked “Alternative.” In addition, the Bidder shall submit copies of the bid, in the number specified in the BDS and clearly mark them “Copy.” In the event of any discrepancy between the original and the copies, the original shall prevail.   2. The original and all copies of the bid shall be typed or written in indelible ink and shall be signed by a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder. This authorization shall consist of a written confirmation as specified in the BDS and shall be attached to the bid. The name and position held by each person signing the authorization must be typed or printed below the signature. All pages of the bid where entries or amendments have been made shall be signed or initialed by the person signing the bid.   3. In case the Bidder is a JV, the Bid shall be signed by an authorized representative of the JV on behalf of the JV, and so as to be legally binding on all the members as evidenced by a power of attorney signed by their legally authorized representatives.   4. Any inter-lineation, erasures, or overwriting shall be valid only if they are signed or initialed by the person signing the bid. |
|  | D. Submission and Opening of Bids |
| 21. Sealing and Marking of Bids | * 1. The Bidder shall enclose the original and all copies of the bid, including alternative bids, if permitted in accordance with ITB 13, in separate sealed envelopes, duly marking the envelopes as “Original”, “Alternative” and “Copy.” These envelopes containing the original and the copies shall then be enclosed in one single envelope.   2. The inner and outer envelopes shall:  bear the name and address of the Bidder;be addressed to the Purchaser in accordance with ITB 24.1;bear the specific identification of this bidding process indicated in ITB 1.1**;** andbear a warning not to open before the time and date for bid opening.  * 1. If all envelopes are not sealed and marked as required, the Purchaser will assume no responsibility for the misplacement or premature opening of the bid. |
| 22. Deadline for Submission of Bids | * 1. Bids must be received by the Purchaser at the address and no later than the date and time **specified** **in the** **BDS.** When so specified in the BDS, bidders shall have the option of submitting their bids electronically. Bidders submitting bids electronically shall follow the electronic bid submission procedures specified in the BDS.   2. The Purchaser may, at its discretion, extend the deadline for the submission of bids by amending the Bidding Documents in accordance with ITB 8, in which case all rights and obligations of the Purchaser and Bidders previously subject to the deadline shall thereafter be subject to the deadline as extended. |
| 23. Late Bids | * 1. The Purchaser shall not consider any bid that arrives after the deadline for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22. Any bid received by the Purchaser after the deadline for submission of bids shall be declared late, rejected, and returned unopened to the Bidder. |
| 24. Withdrawal, Substitution, and Modification of Bids | * 1. A Bidder may withdraw, substitute, or modify its Bid after it has been submitted by sending a written notice, duly signed by an authorized representative, and shall include a copy of the authorization (the power of attorney) in accordance with ITB 20.2, (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies ). The corresponding substitution or modification of the bid must accompany the respective written notice. All notices must be:  1. prepared and submitted in accordance with ITB 20 and 21 (except that withdrawal notices do not require copies), and in addition, the respective envelopes shall be clearly marked “Withdrawal,” “Substitution,” or “Modification;” and 2. received by the Purchaser prior to the deadline prescribed for submission of bids, in accordance with ITB 22.    1. Bids requested to be withdrawn in accordance with ITB 24.1 shall be returned unopened to the Bidders.    2. No bid may be withdrawn, substituted, or modified in the interval between the deadline for submission of bids and the expiration of the period of bid validity specified by the Bidder on the Letter of Bid or any extension thereof. |
| 25. Bid Opening | * 1. Except as in the cases specified in ITB 23 and 24, the Purchaser shall publicly open and read out in accordance with ITB 25.3 all bids received by the deadline at the date, time and place **specified in the** **BDS** in the presence of Bidders’ designated representatives and anyone who choose to attend. Any specific electronic bid opening procedures required if electronic bidding is permitted in accordance with ITB 22.1, shall be as **specified in the** **BDS.**   2. First, envelopes marked “Withdrawal” shall be opened and read out and the envelope with the corresponding bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. If the withdrawal envelope does not contain a copy of the “power of attorney” confirming the signature as a person duly authorized to sign on behalf of the Bidder, the corresponding bid will be opened. No bid withdrawal shall be permitted unless the corresponding withdrawal notice contains a valid authorization to request the withdrawal and is read out at bid opening. Next, envelopes marked “Substitution” shall be opened and read out and exchanged with the corresponding Bid being substituted, and the substituted Bid shall not be opened, but returned to the Bidder. No Bid substitution shall be permitted unless the corresponding substitution notice contains a valid authorization to request the substitution and is read out at bid opening. Envelopes marked “Modification” shall be opened and read out with the corresponding Bid. No Bid modification shall be permitted unless the corresponding modification notice contains a valid authorization to request the modification and is read out at Bid opening. Only bids that are opened and read out at Bid opening shall be considered further.   3. All other envelopes shall be opened one at a time, reading out: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a modification; the total Bid Prices, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts and alternative bids; the presence or absence of a Bid Security, if required; and any other details as the Purchaser may consider appropriate. Only discounts and alternative bids read out at Bid opening shall be considered for evaluation. The Letter of Bid and the Price Schedules are to be initialed by representatives of the Purchaser attending bid opening in the manner **specified in the** **BDS.** The Purchaser shall neither discuss the merits of any bid nor reject any bid (except for late bids, in accordance with ITB 25.1).   4. The Purchaser shall prepare a record of the bid opening that shall include, as a minimum: the name of the Bidder and whether there is a withdrawal, substitution, or modification; the Bid Price, per lot (contract) if applicable, including any discounts, and alternative bids; and the presence or absence of a Bid Security, if one was required. The Bidders’ representatives who are present shall be requested to sign the record. The omission of a Bidder’s signature on the record shall not invalidate the contents and effect of the record. A copy of the record shall be distributed to all Bidders. |
|  | E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids |
| 26. Confidentiality | * 1. Information relating to the evaluation of bids and recommendation of contract award, shall not be disclosed to bidders or any other persons not officially concerned with the bidding process until information on Contract Award is communication to all Bidders in accordance with ITB 40.   2. Any effort by a Bidder to influence the Purchaser in the evaluation or contract award decisions may result in the rejection of its Bid.   3. Notwithstanding ITB 26.2, from the time of bid opening to the time of Contract Award, if any Bidder wishes to contact the Purchaser on any matter related to the bidding process, it should do so in writing. |
| 27. Clarification of Bids | * 1. To assist in the examination, evaluation, comparison of the bids, and qualification of the Bidders, the Purchaser may, at its discretion, ask any Bidder for a clarification of its Bid. Any clarification submitted by a Bidder in respect to its Bid and that is not in response to a request by the Purchaser shall not be considered. The Purchaser’s request for clarification and the response shall be in writing. No change, including any voluntary increase or decrease, in the prices or substance of the Bid shall be sought, offered, or permitted, except to confirm the correction of arithmetic errors discovered by the Purchaser in the Evaluation of the bids, in accordance with ITB 31.   2. If a Bidder does not provide clarifications of its bid by the date and time set in the Purchaser’s request for clarification, its bid may be rejected. |
| 28. Deviations, Reservations, and Omissions | * 1. During the evaluation of bids, the following definitions apply:  1. “Deviation” is a departure from the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; 2. “Reservation” is the setting of limiting conditions or withholding from complete acceptance of the requirements specified in the Bidding Documents; and 3. “Omission” is the failure to submit part or all of the information or documentation required in the Bidding Documents |
| 29. Determination of Responsiveness | * 1. The Purchaser’s determination of a bid’s responsiveness is to be based on the contents of the bid itself, as defined in ITB 11.   2. A substantially responsive Bid is one that meets the requirements of the Bidding Documents without material deviation, reservation, or omission. A material deviation, reservation, or omission is one that:  if accepted, wouldaffect in any substantial way the scope, quality, or performance of the Goods and Related Services specified in the Contract; orlimit in any substantial way, inconsistent with the Bidding Documents, the Purchaser’s rights or the Bidder’s obligations under the Contract; orif rectified, would unfairly affect the competitive position of other bidders presenting substantially responsive bids.  * 1. The Purchaser shall examine the technical aspects of the bid submitted in accordance with ITB 16 and ITB 17, in particular, to confirm that all requirements of Section VII, Schedule of Requirements have been met without any material deviation or reservation, or omission.   2. If a bid is not substantially responsive to the requirements of Bidding Documents, it shall be rejected by the Purchaser and may not subsequently be made responsive by correction of the material deviation, reservation, or omission. |
| 30. Nonconformi­ties, Errors and Omissions | * 1. Provided that a Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may waive any nonconformities in the Bid.   2. Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser may request that the Bidder submit the necessary information or documentation, within a reasonable period of time, to rectify nonmaterial nonconformities or omissions in the bid related to documentation requirements. Such omission shall not be related to any aspect of the price of the Bid. Failure of the Bidder to comply with the request may result in the rejection of its Bid.   3. Provided that a bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall rectify quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities related to the Bid Price. To this effect, the Bid Price shall be adjusted, for comparison purposes only, to reflect the price of a missing or non-conforming item or component. |
| 31. Correction of Arithmetical Errors | 1. Provided that the Bid is substantially responsive, the Purchaser shall correct arithmetical errors on the following basis:  if there is a discrepancy between the unit price and the line item total that is obtained by multiplying the unit price by the quantity, the unit price shall prevail and the line item total shall be corrected, unless in the opinion of the Purchaser there is an obvious misplacement of the decimal point in the unit price, in which case the line item total as quoted shall govern and the unit price shall be corrected;if there is an error in a total corresponding to the addition or subtraction of subtotals, the subtotals shall prevail and the total shall be corrected; andif there is a discrepancy between words and figures, the amount in words shall prevail, unless the amount expressed in words is related to an arithmetic error, in which case the amount in figures shall prevail subject to (a) and (b) above.  1. Bidders shall be requested to accept correction of arithmetical errors. Failure to accept the correction in accordance with ITB 31.1, shall result in the rejection of the Bid. |
| 32. Conversion to Single Currency | * 1. For evaluation and comparison purposes, the currency(ies) of the Bid shall be converted in a single currency as **specified in the** **BDS.** |
| 33. Margin of Preference | * 1. **Unless otherwise specified in the** **BDS,** a margin of preference shall not apply. |
| 34. Evaluation of Bids | * 1. The Purchaser shall use the criteria and methodologies listed in this Clause. No other evaluation criteria or methodologies shall be permitted.   2. To evaluate a Bid, the Purchaser shall consider the following:  evaluation will be done for Items or Lots (contracts), as **specified in the** **BDS;** and the Bid Price as quoted in accordance with clause 14;price adjustment for correction of arithmetic errors in accordance with ITB 31.1;price adjustment due to discounts offered in accordance with ITB 14.3;converting the amount resulting from applying (a) to (c) above, if relevant, to a single currency in accordance with ITB 32;price adjustment due to quantifiable nonmaterial nonconformities in accordance with ITB 30.3;the additional evaluation factors are specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria;  * 1. The estimated effect of the price adjustment provisions of the Conditions of Contract, applied over the period of execution of the Contract, shall not be taken into account in bid evaluation.   2. If these Bidding Documents allows Bidders to quote separate prices for different lots (contracts), the methodology to determine the lowest evaluated price of the lot (contract) combinations, including any discounts offered in the Letter of Bid Form, is specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria   3. The Purchaser’s evaluation of a bid will exclude and not take into account:  in the case of Goods manufactured in the Purchaser’s Country, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the goods if a contract is awarded to the Bidder;in the case of Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country, already imported or to be imported, customs duties and other import taxes levied on the imported Good, sales and other similar taxes, which will be payable on the Goods if the contract is awarded to the Bidder;any allowance for price adjustment during the period of execution of the contract, if provided in the bid.  * 1. The Purchaser’s evaluation of a bid may require the consideration of other factors, in addition to the Bid Price quoted in accordance with ITB 14. These factors may be related to the characteristics, performance, and terms and conditions of purchase of the Goods and Related Services. The effect of the factors selected, if any, shall be expressed in monetary terms to facilitate comparison of bids, unless otherwise **specified in the BDS** from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria. The criteria and methodologies to be used shall be as specified in ITB 34.2 (f). |
| 35. Comparison of Bids | * 1. The Purchaser shall compare the evaluated prices of all substantially responsive bids established in accordance with ITB 34.2 to determine the lowest evaluated bid. The comparison shall be on the basis of CIP (place of final destination) prices for imported goods and EXW prices, plus cost of inland transportation and insurance to place of destination, for goods manufactured within the Borrower’s country, together with prices for any required installation, training, commissioning and other services. The evaluation of prices shall not take into account custom duties and other taxes levied on imported goods quoted CIP and sales and similar taxes levied in connection with the sale or delivery of goods. |
| 36. Qualification of the Bidder | * 1. The Purchaser shall determine to its satisfaction whether the Bidder that is selected as having submitted the lowest evaluated and substantially responsive bid meets the qualifying criteria specified in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria.   2. The determination shall be based upon an examination of the documentary evidence of the Bidder’s qualifications submitted by the Bidder, pursuant to ITB 17.   3. An affirmative determination shall be a prerequisite for award of the Contract to the Bidder. A negative determination shall result in disqualification of the bid, in which event the Purchaser shall proceed to the next lowest evaluated bid to make a similar determination of that Bidder’s qualifications to perform satisfactorily. |
| 37. Purchaser’s Right to Accept Any Bid, and to Reject Any or All Bids | * 1. The Purchaser reserves the right to accept or reject any bid, and to annul the bidding process and reject all bids at any time prior to contract award, without thereby incurring any liability to Bidders. In case of annulment, all bids submitted and specifically, bid securities, shall be promptly returned to the Bidders. |
|  | F. Award of Contract |
| 38. Award Criteria | * 1. Subject to ITB 37.1, the Purchaser shall award the Contract to the Bidder whose bid has been determined to be the lowest evaluated bid and is substantially responsive to the Bidding Documents, provided further that the Bidder is determined to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily. |
| 39. Purchaser’s Right to Vary Quantities at Time of Award | * 1. At the time the Contract is awarded, the Purchaser reserves the right to increase or decrease the quantity of Goods and Related Services originally specified in Section VII, Schedule of Requirements, provided this does not exceed the percentages **specified in the BDS,** and without any change in the unit prices or other terms and conditions of the bid and the Bidding Documents. |
| 40. Notification of Award | * 1. Prior to the expiration of the period of bid validity, the Purchaser shall notify the successful Bidder, in writing, that its Bid has been accepted. The notification letter (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called the “Letter of Acceptance”) shall specify the sum that the Purchaser will pay the Supplier in consideration of the supply of Goods (hereinafter and in the Conditions of Contract and Contract Forms called “the Contract Price”). At the same time, the Purchaser shall also notify all other Bidders of the results of the bidding and shall publish in *UNDB online* the results identifying the bid and lot (contract) numbers and the following information:   (i) name of each Bidder who submitted a Bid;  (ii) bid prices as read out at Bid Opening;  (iii) name and evaluated prices of each Bid that was evaluated;  (iv) name of bidders whose bids were rejected and the reasons for their rejection; and  (v) name of the successful Bidder, and the Price it offered, as well as the duration and summary scope of the contract awarded.   * 1. Until a formal Contract is prepared and executed, the notification of award shall constitute a binding Contract.   2. The Purchaser shall promptly respond in writing to any unsuccessful Bidder who, after notification of award in accordance with ITB 40.1, requests in writing the grounds on which its bid was not selected. |
| 41. Signing of Contract | * 1. Promptly after notification, the Purchaser shall send the successful Bidder the Contract Agreement.   2. Within twenty-eight (28) days of receipt of the Contract Agreement, the successful Bidder shall sign, date, and return it to the Purchaser.   3. Notwithstanding ITB 41.2 above, in case signing of the Contract Agreement is prevented by any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, where such export restrictions arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, the Bidder shall not be bound by its bid, always provided however, that the Bidder can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that signing of the Contact Agreement has not been prevented by any lack of diligence on the part of the Bidder in completing any formalities, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. |
| 42. Performance Security | * 1. Within twenty eight (28) days of the receipt of notification of award from the Purchaser, the successful Bidder, if required, shall furnish the Performance Security in accordance with the GCC, subject to ITB 34.5, using for that purpose the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, or another Form acceptable to the Purchaser. If the Performance Security furnished by the successful Bidder is in the form of a bond, it shall be issued by a bonding or insurance company that has been determined by the successful Bidder to be acceptable to the Purchaser. A foreign institution providing a bond shall have a correspondent financial institution located in the Purchaser’s Country.   2. Failure of the successful Bidder to submit the above-mentioned Performance Security or sign the Contract shall constitute sufficient grounds for the annulment of the award and forfeiture of the Bid Security. In that event the Purchaser may award the Contract to the next lowest evaluated Bidder, whose bid is substantially responsive and is determined by the Purchaser to be qualified to perform the Contract satisfactorily. |

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Section II. Bid Data Sheet (BDS)  The following specific data for the goods to be procured shall complement, supplement, or amend the provisions in the Instructions to Bidders (ITB). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in ITB. | |
| **ITB Clause Reference** | **A. General** |
| **ITB 1.1** | The reference number of the Invitation for Bids is:  **LRCP-1/18-34-NCB-G-1** |
| **ITB 1.1** | The Purchaser is:  **Government of the Republic of North Macedonia / Municipality of Veles** |
| **ITB 1.1** | The name of the NCB is:  **Procurement and installation of Smart Equipment for Municipality of Veles**  The identification number of the NCB is:  **LRCP-1/18-34-NCB-G-1**    The number and identification of lots (contracts) comprising this NCB is: 1 |
| **ITB 2.1** | The Borrower is:  **Government of the Republic of North Macedonia / Municipality of Veles** |
| **ITB 2.1** | Loan or Financing Agreement amount: **EUR 15.760.000,00** |
| **ITB 2.1** | The name of the Project is: ***Local and Regional Competitiveness Project*** |
| **ITB 4.1** | Maximum number of members in the JV shall be: ***2*** |
| **IITB 4.4** | A list of debarred firms and individuals is available on the Bank’s external website: <http://www.worldbank.org/debarr> |
|  | **B. Contents of Bidding Documents** |
| **ITB 7.1** | For **Clarification of bid purposes** only, the Purchaser’s address is:  Local and regional Competitiveness Project  Attention: Krzhovska Olivera  Address: Miroslav Krleza 60/1, 1000 Skopje  Phone: +389 2 3280 457  e-mail address: [olivera.krzhovska@lrcp.org.mk](file:///C:\\Users\\User\\Desktop\\SMART%20Veles%20WB\\olivera.krzhovska@lrcp.org.mk)  Requests for clarification should be received by the Employer no later than: **14 days before the deadline for submission of bids.** |
| **ITB 7.1** | Web page: [www.lrcp.mk](http://www.lrcp.mk) |
|  | **C. Preparation of Bids** |
| **ITB 10.1** | The language of the bid is: ***Macedonian***  All correspondence exchange shall be in Macedonian language.  Language for translation of supporting documents and printed literature is Macedonian*.* |
| **ITB 11.1 (j)** | The Bidder shall submit the following additional documents in its bid:   * + 1. In the case of a joint venture (JV), a JV contract or a letter of intent to form a JV, including a draft agreement specifying the parts of the work to be performed by the partners in the JV; |
| **ITB 13.1** | Alternative Bids ***shall not be*** considered. |
| **ITB 14.5** | The prices quoted by the Bidder ***shall not*** be subject to adjustment during the performance of the Contract. |
| **ITB 14.6** | Prices quoted for each lot (contract) shall correspond at least **to 100**percent of the items specified for each lot (contract).  Prices quoted for each item of a lot shall correspond at least to **100** percent of the quantities specified for this item of a lot. |
| **ITB 14.7** | The Incoterms edition is: Incoterm 2020 published by ICC on 10.09.2019 |
| **ITB 14.8 (b) (i) and (c) (v)** | Place of Destination:  **Lake Mladost, 1400 Veles** |
| **ITB 14.8 (a) (iii);(b)(ii) and (c)(v)** | “Final destination (Project Site)”:  **Lake Mladost, 1400 Veles** |
| **ITB 15.1** | The prices shall be quoted by the bidder in: ***Macedonian denars*** |
| **ITB 16.4** | Period of time the Goods are expected to be functioning (for the purpose of spare parts): ***As stipulated in the technical Specifications (10 years for all items)*** |
| **ITB 17.2 (a)** | Manufacturer’s authorization is: ***required*** |
| **ITB 17.2 (b)** | After sales service is: ***required*** |
| **ITB 18.1** | The bid validity period shall be **120** days. |
| **ITB 18.3 (a)** | The bid price shall be adjusted by the following factor(s): **n/a** |
| **ITB 19.1** | A *Bid Security* ***shall not be*** required.  A Bid-Securing Declaration ***shall be*** required. |
| **ITB 19.3 (d)** | Other types of acceptable securities: **None** |
| **ITB 20.1** | In addition to the original of the bid, the number of copies is**: *2*** |
| **ITB 20.2** | The written confirmation of authorization to sign on behalf of the Bidder shall consist of**:**  Name and description of the documents confirming the authorization of the signatory to sign the bid, such as power of attorney; and  In case the bid is submitted by an existing or joint venture (JV) to be  established, a document signed by all members in the joint venture (i) stating that all members shall be jointly and severally liable for the execution of the Contract, in accordance with ITB 4.1 (a) and (ii) appointing a representative who shall have the authority to conduct all business for and on behalf of any and all the members of the JV during the bidding process and, in the event the JV is awarded the Contract, during contract execution. |
|  | **D. Submission and Opening of Bids** |
| **ITB 22.1** | For **bid submission purposes** only, the Purchaser’s address is:  Local and Regional Competitiveness Project Address: Miroslav Krleza 60/1, 1000 Skopje  Country: Republic of North Macedonia  **The deadline for bid submission is:**  Date: **12.02.2021**  Time: **11:00** |
| **ITB 25.1** | The bid opening shall take place at:  Local and Regional Competitiveness Project  Miroslav Krleza 60/1, 1000 Skopje  Country: Republic of North Macedonia  Date: **12.02.2021**  Time: **11:00** |
| **ITB 25.3** | The Letter of Bid and Price Schedules shallbe initialed by 1 (one) representatives of the Purchaser conducting Bid opening*.* |
| **E. Evaluation and Comparison of Bids** | |
| **ITB 32.1** | The currency that shall be used for bid evaluation and comparison purposes to convert all bid prices expressed in various currencies into a single currency is: **Macedonian denars**  The source of exchange rate shall be: **n/a**  The date for the exchange rate shall be*:* **n/a** |
| **ITB 34.2(a)** | Evaluation will be done for ***Items***  Note:  ***Bids will be evaluated for each item and the Contract will comprise the item(s) awarded to the successful Bidder*** |
| **ITB 34.6** | The adjustments shall be determined using the following criteria, from amongst those set out in Section III, Evaluation and Qualification Criteria:   1. Deviation in Delivery schedule: ***No*** 2. Deviation in payment schedule: ***No*** 3. the cost of major replacement components, mandatory spare parts, and service: ***No*** 4. the availability in the Purchaser’s Country of spare parts and after-sales services for the equipment offered in the bid: *No* 5. the projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment: ***No*** 6. the performance and productivity of the equipment offered: ***No*** |
| **F. Award of Contract** | |
| **ITB 39.1** | The maximum percentage by which quantities may be increased is: 15%  The maximum percentage by which quantities may be decreased is: 15% |

Section III. Evaluation and Qualification Criteria

This Section contains all the criteria that the Purchaser shall use to evaluate a bid and qualify the Bidders. in accordance with ITB 34 and ITB 36, no other factors, methods or criteria shall be used.

**Contents**

[1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33) 40](#_Toc346722376)

[2. Evaluation (ITB 34) 41](#_Toc346722377)

[3. Qualification (ITB 36) 43](#_Toc346722378)

1. Margin of Preference (ITB 33) NOT APPLICABLE

If the Bidding Data Sheet so specifies, the Purchaser will grant a margin of preference to goods manufactured in the Purchaser’s country for the purpose of bid comparison, in accordance with the procedures outlined in subsequent paragraphs.

Bids will be classified in one of three groups, as follows*:*

(a) **Group A:** Bids offering goods manufactured in the Purchaser’s Country, for which (i) labor, raw materials, and components from within the Purchaser’s Country account for more than thirty (30) percent of the EXW price; and (ii) the production facility in which they will be manufactured or assembled has been engaged in manufacturing or assembling such goods at least since the date of bid submission.

(b) **Group B:** All other bids offering Goods manufactured in the Purchaser’s Country.

(c) **Group C:** Bids offering Goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country that have been already imported or that will be imported*.*

To facilitate this classification by the Purchaser, the Bidder shall complete whichever version of the Price Schedule furnished in the Bidding Documents is appropriate provided, however, that the completion of an incorrect version of the Price Schedule by the Bidder shall not result in rejection of its bid, but merely in the Purchaser’s reclassification of the bid into its appropriate bid group.

The Purchaser will first review the bids to confirm the appropriateness of, and to modify as necessary, the bid group classification to which bidders assigned their bids in preparing their Bid Forms and Price Schedules.

All evaluated bids in each group will then be compared to determine the lowest evaluated bid of each group. Such lowest evaluated bids shall be compared with each other and if as a result of this comparison a bid from Group A or Group B is the lowest, it shall be selected for the award.

If as a result of the preceding comparison, the lowest evaluated bid is a bid from Group C, all bids from Group C shall be further compared with the lowest evaluated bid from Group A after adding to the evaluated price of goods offered in each bid from Group C, for the purpose of this further comparison only, an amount equal to 15% (fifteen percent) of the respective CIP bid price for goods to be imported and already imported goods. Both prices shall include unconditional discounts and be corrected for arithmetical errors. If the bid from Group A is the lowest, it shall be selected for award. If not, the lowest evaluated bid from Group C shall be selected as paragraph above.”

2. Evaluation (ITB 34)

The Contract will be awarded to the lowest evaluated to bidder offering the lowest evaluated substantially responsive bid.

3. Qualification (ITB 36)

**3.1 Postqualification Requirements (ITB 36.1)**

After determining the lowest-evaluated bid in accordance with ITB 35.1, the Purchaser shall carry out the postqualification of the Bidder in accordance with ITB 36, using only the requirements specified. Requirements not included in the text below shall not be used in the evaluation of the Bidder’s qualifications.

(a) If Bidder is Manufacturer:

(i) Financial Capability

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence that it meets the following financial requirement(s):

1. Certificate from the Central Registry for the Registered activity.
2. Certificate from the Central Registry that no bankruptcy procedure has been initiated against the company;

(ii) Experience and Technical Capacity

The Bidder shall furnish documentary evidence to demonstrate that it meets the following experience requirement(s):

In order to qualify as capable of carrying out the public procurement contract in question in terms of its technical and professional experience, the economic operator must meet the following minimum requirements:

* *The economic operator should provide evidence of 1 successful contract of similar nature, scope and value on implementations involving smart integrations in the past 5 years, with each exceeding 3.000.000 MKD.*

In order to qualify as capable of carrying out the public procurement contract in question in terms of its technical and professional capability, the economic operator must meet the following minimum requirements:

* *The economic operator should provide a dedicated focal point for coordination – Project Manager with at least 1 successful implementations on record of similar smart integrations.*

(b) If Bidder is not manufacturer:

If a Bidder is not a manufacturer, but is offering the Goods on behalf of the Manufacturer under Manufacturer's Authorization Form (Section IV, Bidding Forms), the Manufacturer shall demonstrate the above qualifications (i), (ii), (iii) and the Bidder shall demonstrate that it has successfully completed at least \_\_\_\_\_\_1\_\_\_\_\_\_ contracts of similar nature in the past \_\_\_\_\_\_\_5\_\_\_\_\_ year.

|  |
| --- |
| Section IV. Bidding Forms |

**Table of Forms**

Letter of Bid 40

Bidder Information Form 43

Bidder’s JV Members Information Form 44

Price Schedule 46

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration 49

Manufacturer’s Authorization 50

Letter of Bid

|  |
| --- |
| *The Bidder must prepare the Letter of Bid on stationery with its letterhead clearly showing the Bidder’s complete name and address.*  ***Note: All italicized text is for use in preparing these form and shall be deleted from the final products.*** |

Date: **[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]**

ICB No.: **[*insert number of bidding process*]**

Invitation for Bid No.: **[insert identification]**

Alternative No.:***[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]***

To: **[*insert complete name of Purchaser*]**

1. We have examined and have no reservations to the Bidding Documents, including Addenda issued in accordance with Instructions to Bidders (ITB 8) ;
2. We meet the eligibility requirements and have no conflict of interest in accordance with ITB 4;
3. We have not been suspended nor declared ineligible by the Purchaser based on execution of a Bid Securing Declaration in the Purchaser’s country in accordance with ITB 4.6
4. We offer to supply in conformity with the Bidding Documents and in accordance with the Delivery Schedules specified in the Schedule of Requirements the following Goods: **[*insert a brief description of the Goods and Related Services*]**;
5. The total price of our Bid, excluding any discounts offered in item (f) below is:

In case of only one lot, total price of the Bid **[insert the total price of the bid in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];**

In case of multiple lots, total price of each lot **[insert the total price of each lot in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies];**

In case of multiple lots, total price of all lots (sum of all lots) **[insert the total price of all lots in words and figures, indicating the various amounts and the respective currencies]**;

1. The discounts offered and the methodology for their application are:

(i) The discounts offered are: **[Specify in detail each discount offered.**]

(ii) The exact method of calculations to determine the net price after application of discounts is shown below:[**Specify in detail the method that shall be used to apply the discounts**];

1. Our bid shall be valid for a period of **[*specify the number of calendar days*]**  days from the date fixed for the bid submission deadline in accordance with the Bidding Documents, and it shall remain binding upon us and may be accepted at any time before the expiration of that period;
2. If our bid is accepted, we commit to obtain a performance security in accordance with the Bidding Documents;
3. Weare not participating, as a Bidder or as a subcontractor, in more than one bid in this bidding process in accordance with ITB 4.2(e), other than alternative bids submitted in accordance with ITB 13;
4. We, along with any of our subcontractors, suppliers, consultants, manufacturers, or service providers for any part of the contract, are not subject to, and not controlled by any entity or individual that is subject to, a temporary suspension or a debarment imposed by a member of the World Bank Group or a debarment imposed by the World Bank Group in accordance with the Agreement for Mutual Enforcement of Debarment Decisions between the World Bank and other development banks. Further, we are not ineligible under the Employer’s country laws or official regulations or pursuant to a decision of the United Nations Security Council;
5. We are not a government owned entity/ We are a government owned entity but meet the requirements of ITB 4.5;[[1]](#footnote-1)
6. We have paid, or will pay the following commissions, gratuities, or fees with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract: **[insert complete name of each Recipient, its full address, the reason for which each commission or gratuity was paid and the amount and currency of each such commission or gratuity]**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Name of Recipient | Address | Reason | Amount |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |
|  |  |  |  |

(If none has been paid or is to be paid, indicate “none.”)

1. We understand that this bid, together with your written acceptance thereof included in your notification of award, shall constitute a binding contract between us, until a formal contract is prepared and executed; and
2. We understand that you are not bound to accept the lowest evaluated bid or any other bid that you may receive.
3. We hereby certify that we have taken steps to ensure that no person acting for us or on our behalf will engage in any type of fraud and corruption

Name of the Bidder**\*** **[insert complete name of person signing the Bid]**

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**\*\* [insert complete name of person duly authorized to sign the Bid]**

Title of the person signing the Bid **[insert complete title of the person signing the Bid]**

Signature of the person named above [**insert signature of person whose name and capacity are shown above**]

Date signed \_**[insert date of signing]** day of **[insert month]**, **[insert year]**

**\***: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

\*\*: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder to be attached with the Bid Schedules.

Bidder Information Form

*[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. No alterations to its format shall be permitted and no substitutions shall be accepted.]*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission*]

ICB No.: *[insert number of bidding process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

Page \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ of\_ \_\_\_\_\_\_ pages

|  |
| --- |
| 1. Bidder’s Name *[insert Bidder’s legal name]* |
| 2. In case of JV, legal name of each member : *[insert legal name of each member in JV]* |
| 3. Bidder’s actual or intended country of registration: *[insert actual or intended country of registration]* |
| 4. Bidder’s year of registration: *[insert Bidder’s year of registration]* |
| 5. Bidder’s Address in country of registration: *[insert Bidder’s legal address in country of registration]* |
| 6. Bidder’s Authorized Representative Information  Name: *[insert Authorized Representative’s name]*  Address: *[insert Authorized Representative’s Address]*  Telephone/Fax numbers: *[insert Authorized Representative’s telephone/fax numbers]*  Email Address: *[insert Authorized Representative’s email address]* |
| 7. Attached are copies of original documents of *[check the box(es) of the attached original documents]*  🞎 Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or documents of registration of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.  🞎 In case of JV, letter of intent to form JV or JV agreement, in accordance with ITB 4.1.  🞎 In case of Government-owned enterprise or institution, in accordance with ITB 4.5 documents establishing:   * Legal and financial autonomy * Operation under commercial law * Establishing that the Bidder is not dependent agency of the Purchaser   2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. |

Bidder’s JV Members Information Form

*[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated below. The following table shall be filled in for the Bidder and for each member of a Joint Venture]].*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission*]

ICB No.: *[insert number of bidding process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

Page \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ of\_ \_\_\_\_\_\_ pages

|  |
| --- |
| 1. Bidder’s Name: *[insert Bidder’s legal name]* |
| 2. Bidder’s JV Member’s name: *[insert JV’s Member legal name]* |
| 3. Bidder’s JV Member’s country of registration: *[insert JV’s Member country of registration]* |
| 4. Bidder’s JV Member’s year of registration: *[insert JV’s Member year of registration]* |
| 5. Bidder’s JV Member’s legal address in country of registration: *[insert JV’s Member legal address in country of registration]* |
| 6. Bidder’s JV Member’s authorized representative information  Name: *[insert name of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Address: *[insert address of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Telephone/Fax numbers: *[insert telephone/fax numbers of JV’s Member authorized representative]*  Email Address: *[insert email address of JV’s Member authorized representative]* |
| 7. Attached are copies of original documents of *[check the box(es) of the attached original documents]*  🞎 Articles of Incorporation (or equivalent documents of constitution or association), and/or registration documents of the legal entity named above, in accordance with ITB 4.3.  🞎 In case of a Government-owned enterprise or institution, documents establishing legal and financial autonomy, operation in accordance with commercial law, and absence of dependent status, in accordance with ITB 4.5.  2. Included are the organizational chart, a list of Board of Directors, and the beneficial ownership. |

Price Schedule Forms

*[The Bidder shall fill in these Price Schedule Forms in accordance with the instructions indicated. The list of line items in column 1 of the* ***Price Schedules*** *shall coincide with the List of Goods and Related Services specified by the Purchaser in the Schedule of Requirements.]*

Price Schedule

|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| Currencies in accordance with ITB 15 | | | |  | | | | Date:\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ | |
|  | | | | ICB No: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ | |
|  | | | |  | |
|  | | | | Alternative No: \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ | |
|  | | | | Page No \_\_\_\_\_\_ of \_\_\_\_\_\_ | |
| 1 | 2 | 3 | 4 | 5 | 6 | 7 | 8 | | 9 |
| Line Item | Description of Goods | Country of Origin | Delivery Date as defined by Incoterms | Quantity and physical unit | Unit price | CIP Price per line item | Price per line item for inland transportation and other services required in the Purchaser’s country to convey the Goods to their final destination specified in BDS | | Total Price per Line item |
| No | CIP *EZERO MLADOST, VELES* | (Col. 5x6) | (Col. 7+8) |
|  | in accordance with ITB 14.8(b)(i) |  |  |
| *[insert number of the item]* | *[insert name of good]* | *[insert country of origin of the Good]* | *[insert quoted Delivery Date]* | *[insert number of units to be supplied and name of the physical unit]* | *[insert unit price CIP per unit]* | *[insert total CIP price per line item]* | *[insert the corresponding price per line item]* | | *[insert total price of the line item]* |
| **1** | **Паметно решение за улично осветлување** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **1.1 LED светилки** |  |  | 43 |  |  |  | |  |
| **1.2   Контрола на светилките** |  |  | 43 |  |  |  | |  |
| **1.3   Паметно софтверско решение за осветлување како услуга (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
|
| **1.4   Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2** | **Паметен паркинг систем** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **2.1 Сензори за паметeн паркинг** |  |  | 23 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2.2 Мрежни елементи / Главен контролер** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2.3 Информационен дисплеј** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2.4 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување на паркингот (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2.5 Апликации за крајните корисници (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **2.6 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **3** | **Паметни полначи за електрични возила** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **3.1 Станица за полнење на електрични возила** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **3.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со станиците за полнење (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **3.3 Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **3.4 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **4** | **Паметни клупи** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **4.1 Клупа** |  |  | 5 |  |  |  | |  |
| **4.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со паметните клупи (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **4.3 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **5** | **Велосипеди со софтвер како услуга за управување со паметни брави за заклучување (SaaS)** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **5.1  Велосипеди** |  |  | 20 |  |  |  | |  |
| **5.2  Паметни брави за заклучување** |  |  | 20 |  |  |  | |  |
| **5.3 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со бравите за заклучување на велосипедите (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **5.4 Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **5.5 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
|
| **6** | **Паметно решение за отпад** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **6.1 Сензор за мерење на ниво на исполнетост на контејнер** |  |  | 5 |  |  |  | |  |
| **6.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со системот (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
|
| **6.3 Андроид таблет** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **6.4 Мобилна апликација за возила (SaaS)** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
|
| **6.5. Дополнителни трошоци/услуги** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |
| **7** | **Интегрирано софтверско решение како услуга за смарт елементи - градоначалничка табла (SaaS)** | | | | | | | | |
|  | **Интегрираното софтверско решение како услуга за смарт елементи треба да обезбеди интеграција на податоци од наброените паметни решенија - софтверски според техничките спецификации - соодветно според потребите на секое поединечно решение.** |  |  | 1 |  |  |  | |  |

Form of Bid-Securing Declaration

*[The Bidder shall fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated.]*

Date: *[date (as day, month and year)]*

Bid No.: *[number of bidding process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

To: *[complete name of Purchaser]*

We, the undersigned, declare that:

We understand that, according to your conditions, bids must be supported by a Bid-Securing Declaration.

We accept that we will automatically be suspended from being eligible for bidding in any contract with the Purchaser for the period of time of 3*years* starting on *08.02.2021,* if we are in breach of our obligation(s) under the bid conditions, because we:

(a) have withdrawn our Bid during the period of bid validity specified in the Letter of Bid; or

(b) having been notified of the acceptance of our Bid by the Purchaser during the period of bid validity, (i) fail or refuse to execute the Contract; or (ii) fail or refuse to furnish the Performance Security, if required, in accordance with the ITB.

We understand this Bid Securing Declaration shall expire if we are not the successful Bidder, upon the earlier of (i) our receipt of your notification to us of the name of the successful Bidder; or (ii) twenty-eight days after the expiration of our Bid.

Name of the Bidder**\***

Name of the person duly authorized to sign the Bid on behalf of the Bidder**\*\*** \_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Title of the person signing the Bid \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Signature of the person named above \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_

Date signed \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_\_

**\***: In the case of the Bid submitted by joint venture specify the name of the Joint Venture as Bidder

\*\*: Person signing the Bid shall have the power of attorney given by the Bidder attached to the Bid

*[Note: In case of a Joint Venture, the Bid-Securing Declaration must be in the name of all members to the Joint Venture that submits the bid.]*

Manufacturer’s Authorization

*[The Bidder shall require the Manufacturer to fill in this Form in accordance with the instructions indicated. This* *letter of authorization should be on the letterhead of the Manufacturer and should be signed by a person with the proper authority to sign documents that are binding on the Manufacturer. The Bidder shall include it in its bid, if so indicated in the* ***BDS.****]*

Date: *[insert date (as day, month and year) of Bid Submission]*

ICB No.: *[insert number of bidding process]*

Alternative No.: *[insert identification No if this is a Bid for an alternative]*

To: *[insert complete name of Purchaser]*

WHEREAS

We *[insert complete name of Manufacturer],* who are official manufacturers of*[insert type of goods manufactured],* having factories at [insert full address of Manufacturer’s factories], do hereby authorize *[insert complete name of Bidder]* to submit a bid the purpose of which is to provide the following Goods, manufactured by us *[insert name and or brief description of the Goods],* and to subsequently negotiate and sign the Contract.

We hereby extend our full guarantee and warranty in accordance with Clause 28 of the General Conditions of Contract, with respect to the Goods offered by the above firm.

Signed: *[insert signature(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]*

Name: *[insert complete name(s) of authorized representative(s) of the Manufacturer]*

Title: *[insert title]*

Dated on \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_ day of \_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_, \_\_\_\_\_\_\_ *[insert date of signing]*

Section V. Eligible Countries

**Eligibility for the Provision of Goods, Works and Non Consulting Services in   
Bank-Financed Procurement**

In reference to ITB 4.7 and 5.1, for the information of the Bidders, at the present time firms, goods and services from the following countries are excluded from this bidding process:

Under ITB 4.7(a) and 5.1: *none*

Under ITB 4.7(b) and 5.1: *none*

Section VI. Bank Policy - Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices

Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011.

“**Fraud and Corruption:**

1.16 It is the Bank’s policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.[[2]](#footnote-2) In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:

(a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

(i) “corrupt practice” is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;[[3]](#footnote-3);

(ii) “fraudulent practice” is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;[[4]](#footnote-4)

(iii) “collusive practice” is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;[[5]](#footnote-5)

(iv) “coercive practice” is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;[[6]](#footnote-6)

(v) "obstructive practice" is:

(aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or

(bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank’s inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.

(b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;

(c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;

(d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank’s sanctions procedures,[[7]](#footnote-7) including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated[[8]](#footnote-8);

(e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.”

# PART 2 – Supply Requirements

|  |
| --- |
| Section VII. Schedule of Requirements |

**Contents**

1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule 61

2. Technical Specifications 65

3. Drawings 81

4. Inspections and Tests 82

## Notes for Preparing the Schedule of Requirements

The Schedule of Requirements shall be included in the bidding documents by the Purchaser, and shall cover, at a minimum, a description of the goods and services to be supplied and the delivery schedule.

The objective of the Schedule of Requirements is to provide sufficient information to enable bidders to prepare their bids efficiently and accurately, in particular, the Price Schedule, for which a form is provided in Section IV. In addition, the Schedule of Requirements, together with the Price Schedule, should serve as a basis in the event of quantity variation at the time of award of contract pursuant to ITB 41.

The date or period for delivery should be carefully specified, taking into account (a) the implications of delivery terms stipulated in the Instructions to Bidders pursuant to the *Incoterms* rules (i.e., EXW, or CIP, FOB, FCA terms—that “delivery” takes place when goods are delivered **to the carriers**), and (b) the date prescribed herein from which the Purchaser’s delivery obligations start (i.e., notice of award, contract signature, opening or confirmation of the letter of credit).

|  |
| --- |
| 1. List of Goods and Delivery Schedule  *[The Purchaser shall fill in this table, with the exception of the column “Bidder’s offered Delivery date” to be filled by the Bidder]* |

|  |  |  |  |  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- | --- |
| **Line Item** | **Description of Goods** | **Quantity** | **Physical unit** | **Final (Project Site) Destination** | **Delivery Date** | | |
| **N°** | **Earliest Delivery Date** | **Latest Delivery Date** | **Bidder’s offered Delivery date [*to be provided by the bidder*]** |
|  |
| ***A*** | ***B*** | ***C*** | ***D*** | ***E*** | ***F*** | ***G*** | ***H*** |
| **1** | **Паметно решение за улично осветлување** | | | | | | |
|  | **1.1 LED светилки** | **43** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **1.2   Контрола на светилките** | **43** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **1.3   Паметно софтверско решение за осветлување како услуга (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
|
| **1.4   Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2** | **Паметен паркинг систем** | | | | | | |
|  | **2.1 Сензори за паметeн паркинг** | **23** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2.2 Мрежни елементи / Главен контролер** | **1** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2.3 Информационен дисплеј** | **1** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2.4 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување на паркингот (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2.5 Апликации за крајните корисници (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **2.6 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **3** | **Паметни полначи за електрични возила** | | | | | | |
|  | **3.1 Станица за полнење на електрични возила** | **1** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **3.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со станиците за полнење (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **3.3 Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **3.4 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **4** | **Паметни клупи** | | | | | | |
|  | **4.1 Клупа** | **5** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **4.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со паметните клупи (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **4.3 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **5** | **Велосипеди со софтвер како услуга за управување со паметни брави за заклучување (SaaS)** | | | | | | |
|  | **5.1  Велосипеди** | **20** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **5.2  Паметни брави за заклучување** | **20** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **5.3 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со бравите за заклучување на велосипедите (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **5.4 Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **5.5 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
|
| **6** | **Паметно решение за отпад** | | | | | | |
|  | **6.1 Сензор за мерење на ниво на исполнетост на контејнер** | **5** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **6.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со системот (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
|
| **6.3 Андроид таблет** | **1** | **Парче** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **6.4 Мобилна апликација за возила (SaaS)** | **1** | **Количина** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
|
| **6.5. Дополнителни трошоци/услуги** | **1** | **Паушал** | **Езеро Младост, Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |
| **7** | **Интегрирано софтверско решение како услуга за смарт елементи - градоначалничка табла (SaaS)** | | | | | | |
|  | **Интегрираното софтверско решение како услуга за смарт елементи треба да обезбеди интеграција на податоци од наброените паметни решенија - софтверски според техничките спецификации - соодветно според потребите на секое поединечно решение.** | **1** | **Количина** | **Општина Велес** | 15.05.2021 | 30.05.2021 |  |

2. Technical Specifications

**Introduction**

Lake “Mladost” is a tourist area located near the Coridor 10 and it is easly accessable form the highway. The Municipality of Veles is seeking to further develop the touristic capcites in the area and improving the infrastructure by investing in bulding eco-camping facilities, parks, hinking and biking trails, information points, enhacing the infrastructure etc. Through this projet, some parts of the area have already been accomplished like the 1,6 km sidewalk around the lake, parking space and street light infrastructure ready for smart elements.

In order to complete the project, subject to procurement of this procedure will be the smart components and their integration into a complete software solution.

1. **Smart solution for street lights**

The aim of this system is to optimize the street light infrastructure, save electrical energy and reduce the costs of its operations and maintenance.

The infrastructure is not subject of this procurement procedure and is already completed. All necessary details related to it are presented in the “Drawings” section below.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the street infrastructure, offering to the Municipality possibilities for managing the intensity of light, group or individual light control, consumption of energy, etc. The solution will significantly increase the flexibility of the system enabling the authorities to plan, expand, and adjust other locations in the Municipality using this expirience. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **1** | **Паметно решение за улично осветлување** |
| **1.1 LED светилки, 43, Езеро Младост - Велес** |
| Тело изработено од висококвалитетен алуминиум лиен под висок притисок и заштита термички и механички влијанија. |
| Можност за регулација на светлинскиот интензитет (dimming) |
| Температура на боја: од 4000К +/-10% |
| Напојување: 220-240 V |
| Светлосен флукс: минимум 5000 lm. |
| Светлосна ефикасност: минимум 140lm/W |
| Интегрирана пренапонска заштита од 10kV/5kA. |
| Фреквенција: 50-60Hz |
| Амбиентална температура: - 30 до +60 ºC |
| Индекс на репродукција на бои (Color Rendering Index): > 70 |
| ZHAGA, NEMA или приклучок од еквивалентен стандард |
| Степен на заштита на светилката: мин. IP66, мин. IK09. Степен на заштита на приклучокот мин. IK08 |
| Животен век: не помалку од 120.000 работни часови според LM фактор: L90B10. |
| Интегриран LED драјвер со можност за регулација. Светилката да е спремна за интегрирање во систем за интелигентна контрола на светло. |
| Можност за универзална монтажа и тоа вертикално - директно на столб со Ø 60мм и хоризонтално на лира со пречник 48-60мм |
| Можен нагиб на подесување +15⁰ до -15⁰ со интервал од 5 степени |
| Во согласност со: ENEC, CE, RoHS, 2011/65/EU, директива за користење на опасни материјали и 2014/35/EU диерктива за радио и телекомуникациска опрема. |
| ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| * 1. **Контрола на светилките, 43** |
| Минимум IP66 IK08 степен на заштита |
| Напојување: 220-240 V |
| Потрошувачка на енергија: ≤ 0.5 W |
| Поврзување: фунционално решение и технологија со минимални трошоци за одржување |
| Далечинско управување со интензитетот на светлина |
| Работна температура: - 30º C до + 60º C |
| Функционирање при влажност: %: 5 – 95 % |
| Во согласност со: ENEC, CE, RoHS, 2011/65/EU, директива за користење на опасни материјали и 2014/53/EU диерктива за радио ителекомуникациска опрема. |
| ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| * 1. **Паметно софтверско решение за осветлување како услуга (SaaS)** |
| Паметно софтверскорешение интегрирано со светилките, со софтвер како сервис (SaaS) во Софтверското решение треба да обезбеди далечинско управување, мониторирање и контрола на поединечна светилка или група на светилки врз основа на претходно дефиниран план; поддршка на операторот на осветлување во работните процеси (поддршка за превентивно чистење, електрична и механичка инспекција, промена на компоненти во светилката) и реактивно одржување (поправка на дефекти). |
| Пристап до порталот од било кој WEB пребарувач без инталација на дополнителни апликации |
| Решението мора да ги поддржи отворените стандарди (TCP/IP, Http, XML) и мин. 256-битна SSL енкрипција |
| Способност да се групираат светла според потребите на корисникот |
| Графички приказ за статусот (он-лајн/офлајн) на уредите поврзани во системот и визуелизација на податоците какви што се технологија на светилка, датуми за инсталација, потрошувачка, работни саати, функционалност и други параметри на мапата за планирање и анализа на податоци. |
| Периодично генерирање на извештаи, лесно читливи податоци прикажани графички и со дијаграми на кои ќе бидат потенцирани клучните податоци |
| Предефинирани табели за известување и можност за креирање на сопствени извештаи за табели. Корисникот да може да го избере периодот за кој ќе бидат прикажани соодветните податоци (ден, месец, година). |
| Преглед на целосна историја на одржување на секоја светилка поединечно. |
| Функција за вклучување/исклучување и регулација на светлосен интензитет. |
| Сите податоци да може да се експортираат во датотеки во Excel од веб-прелистувач. |
| Способност за контрола на една светилка/група светилки |
| Следење во реално време и контрола на светилките преку мапа |
| Автоматски сигнални известувања за дефекти и недостатоци |
| Можност за креирање/менување/бришење на контролни планови |
| Можност за дефектите да се внесат рачно со интерфејсот на веб-прелистувачот преку центар за повици и / или оператори на терен. Можност за евиденција и статус на дефект. |
| Дефинирање на типовите на грешки. Системот треба да му дозволи на операторот на осветлување да прави сопствени прегледи по типови на грешки и да ги систематизира по приоритет |
| Понуденото решение треба лесно да се интегрира преку API. |
| * 1. **Дополнителни трошоци / услуги, 1** |
| Транспортни трошоци до Езеро Младост, Велес |
| Инсталација на светлечките тела и сите потребни компоненти во системот. Доколку светилките не можат да се монтираат директно на столбовите за осветлување, според проектот за електрика, во тој случај понудувачот/изведувачот задолжително да обезбеди соодветни лири и механизми за спојување на сите 43 светлечки тела. |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение. |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот. |

1. **Smart parking system**

The aim of this system is to optimize the car parking. The sensor based solution will offer real-time information to visitors on occupancy and availability of parking spots, as well as, complete services including payment through a mobile software application.

The infrastructure is not subject of this procurement procedure and is already completed. All necessary details related to it are presented in the “Drawings” section below.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the parking space, offering to the Municipality possibilities for planning and developing policies for parking spaces and its financial effects. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **2** | **Паметен паркинг систем** |
| **2.1 Сензори за паметeн паркинг , 23** |
| Испорака и монтажа на паркинг сензор |
| можност за конфигурабилно земање на примероци за присуство на возило |
| Можност за инсталација покрај или под паркинг површина |
| Прецизност при отчитување на магнетниот сензор: минимум 98% |
| Работна температура: од -30⁰C до +60 ⁰C |
| Најмалку IP68/IK10 степен на заштита |
| Поврзување на сензорите со контролерот според технологија предложена од понудувачот која ќе предизвика најмал трошок на оперативност и одржување |
| ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| **2.2 Мрежни елементи / Главен контролер, 1** |
| Испорака и монтажа на сензорен приемник и мрежен контролер |
| Температурна издржливост -30⁰C до +60⁰C и отпорност на ветер од 200Km/h |
| Надворешна монтажа со IP54/IK08 заштита |
| Термометар: од −20 °C до +100 °C, со резолуција 0,5°C |
| Овозмпжување на ефективна комуникција преку технологија која ќе биде економски најиспалтлива за корисникот (Wi-Fi, 3G/GPRS, етернет, итн). |
| Можност за далечинска контрола на уредот и надградби на софтвер. |
| CE Сертификат  ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| **2.3 Информационен дисплеј, 1** |
| Испорака и монтажа на надворешен ЛЕД дисплеј |
| Куќиште дим. 1500 x 250 x 80 mm |
| LED повеќе сегментен дисплеј |
| Управување со LAN, RS485 или GPRS / GSM мрежи |
| Степен на заштита: минимум IP55 |
| Едноставна надградба |
| API за интеграција на менаџмент платформа од друг производител |
| **2.4 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување на паркингот (SaaS), 1** |
| Испорака на софтверска платформа за контрола и мониторинг на паркинг места. |
| Пристап до порталот од било кој WEB пребарувач без дополнителни инсталации |
| Сателитска слика со позиции и нумерирање на паркинг места и известување за нивниот статус |
| Администрација, набљудување и управување на целиот систем |
| Системот треба да поддржува безбедна шифрирана комуникација на сите нивоа |
| Информации за паркирање во реално време |
| Генерирање на аналитички податоци и историјат за споредба на паркинг места и нивната искористеност според гео-локација |
| Менаџибилен интерфејс со задавање на кориснички привилегии и начинот на употреба. |
| Софтверот да подржува WEB и мобилна верзија |
| Можност за интеграција со други апликации/интеграција преку API |
| **2.5 Апликации за крајните корисници (SaaS), 1** |
| Апликациите за Android и iOS да се достапни бесплатно во продавницата APP и Google Play |
| Информации за достапноста на паркинг места во реално време |
| Историја за минати користени паркинзи |
| Системски известувања |
| Лесен за користење (user friendly) |
| **2.6 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги, 1** |
| Инсталација на сензорите, инфо-дисплејот и останатите компоненти и поврзување на сите елементи во системот со соодветни градежни материјали и композити за заштита од временски услови. (во координација со корисникот и градежните работи опфатени со проектот за електрика за делот предвиден за паркирање). |
| Транспортни трошоци до локација |
| Монтажа на соодветни држачи или бетонски фундамент за LЕD дисплеј . (Според стандардите на ROHS и CE) |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот |

1. **Smart chargers for electric vehicles**

The aim of this system is to install a charging station for electric vehicles. This will allow for users of electric vehicles to visit, stay and enjoy the area. The mobile application will offer online payment for the service.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the charger, offering to the Municipality necessary information for planning and developing policies for electric car chargers and their financial effects. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

The municipality has accepted to provide all the necessary infrastructure and connections for the installation of the charger.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **3** | **Паметни полначи за електрични возила** |
| **3.1 Станица за полнење на електрични возила, 1** |
| Станицата за полнење на електромобили треба да биде самостоечка за јавна употреба |
| Минимум два трофазни приклучока со можност за истовремено полнење |
| Излезна максимална моќност по трофазен приклучок 22KW, за брзо полнење (44 kW вкупна моќност) |
| Минимум еден монофазен приклучок за споро полнење според Моdе 3 стандард |
| Работен напон 230/400 V +/- 10 %; |
| Фрекфенција 50 Hz; |
| Трофазните приклучоци треба да обезбедат полнење според Моdе 3 стандард |
| Приклучоците да бидат од тип Type 2 според стандардот IEC 62196-2 |
| Сите приклучоци треба да бидат со можност за заклучување за контролирана јавна употреба |
| Стандарди за заштита: min. IK10, IP54 |
| Комуникација со електричното возило согласно IEC 61851 или еквивиалентно |
| Бројач за евиденција на испорачаната енергија во возилото |
| Управување со резервација на приклучокот преку WEB/SMS (имплементирано во самата станица) |
| Комуникација за управување и мониторирање на полначите од контролен центар |
| RJ45 порт според стандардот ISO/IEC 8877 или еквивалентно за управување и мониторирање на полначите |
| RFID читач за идентификација на корисникот и за отклучување на приклучокот, компатибилен со ISO 14443 или еквивалентно |
| ЛCD екран со минимум два реда за контрола на полначот, заштитно стакло, позадинско осветлување |
| Запаливост на полначот: UL 94 V-0, EH( IEC) DIN EN 60695-11-10B или еквивалентно |
| Заштита од корозија |
| Работна температура : -20°C до +50°C |
| Влага: 5% до 95 |
| Гаранција минимум 24 месеци |
| Норми за усогласеност:   * 89/336/EEC – Директива за електомагнетна компатибилност * 93/465/EEC – Употреба на полначот согласно CE ознаката за усогласеност * EU ROHS (2002/95SEC) – Директива за ограничување на користење на одредено опасни материи во електричната индустрија и електронска опрема * IEC 61851-1 Ed. 2.0 – Систем за полнење EV – Општи барања * IEC 61851-22 Ed 1.0 – Систем за полнење EV - AC полначи за EV * IEC 62196-1 Edition 2 – утикачи, приклучници, спојници на EV * IEC 62196-2 Edition 1 - утикачи, приклучници, спојници на EV * IEC 14443 – ИД картички, безконтактни картички * ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System * ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard   (или еквивалентно ) за сите погоре наведени стандарди |
| **3.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со станиците за полнење (SaaS), 1** |
| Управување и контрола на приклучок (станици за полнење) и поддршка за ново развиените протоколи за комуникација на станиците за полнење со дополнителна интеграција |
| Овластување за корисници во реално време кое поддржува RFID, ISO / IEC или PIN и далечинско овластување/манипулација (мобилна апликација, SMS, API интерфејс) |
| Информации за инфраструктурата за полнење во реално време |
| Преглед на листи на овластени корисници за полнење, каде што деталните резултати од овластувањето се достапни во реално време и можат понатаму да се анализираат |
| Преглед на листа на сесии за полнење, каде детали од сесиите се достапни во реално време и може понатаму да се анализираат |
| Детален преглед на операцијата на полнење преку листата на настани |
| Далечинско манипулирање со станиците за полнење |
| Можност за далечински ажурирања на фирмвер/софтвер |
| Приказ со висок приоритет на грешки за операторот |
| Администраторот да може да додели улоги на оператор и привилегии кои можат да бидат доделени на одредени станици за полнење |
| Следење на повеќе нивоа: општ приказ на инфраструктура; приказ на станиците за полнење; детална аналитика на станиците за полнење |
| Систем за наплата кој поддржува плаќачи за трети лица за регистрирани EV корисници (на пример, компаниите) |
| Можност за интеграција со други апликации/интеграција преку API |
| **3.3 Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS), 1** |
| Веб-портал и мобилни апликации за Android и iOS со следните функционалности: |
| Мапа за рачно пребарување на пунктовите за полнење |
| Бар за пребарување на пунктовите за полнење со филтер  Информации за пунктовите за полнење: |
| Име на провајдерот |
| Адреса на полначот и точна локација презентирана на мапа |
| Можност за приказ на цена за полнење |
| Тип на приклучок и достапна моќност |
| Статс на прилкучоците (слободно/зафатено/дефект/непознато) во реално време |
| Работни часови на станицата за полнење |
| Контакт за поддршка |
| Рапорт за проблем/дефект |
| Историја на полнења |
| Регистрација на нов корисник |
| Метод на плаќања |
| **3.4 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги, 1** |
| Транспортни трошоци до локација |
| Инсталација на станица за полнење на електрични возила со сите потребни поврзувања (кабли, системски елементи и сл) |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот |

1. **Smart benches**

The aim of this system is to install smart energetically self-sustainable benches. These benches will offer additional services than a conventional park bench, like charging of mobile devices, free Internet access, etc.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the benches, offering to the Municipality necessary information for planning and developing policies for this kind of services and their financial effects. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **4** | **Паметни клупи** |
| **4.1 Клупа, 5** |
| Должина: 2000 mm; +/- 20%  Ширина: 500 mm; +/- 20%  Висина на седиште: 450 mm; +/- 20% |
| Фотоволтаични модули: Монокристални (Monocrystalline) / Вкупна моќност: мин.110W |
| Батерија со капацитет: минимум 70Ah |
| Пристап до широкопојасен Интернет преку LTE за системска комуникација и споделување на Интернет преку Wi-Fi |
| Безжично полнење / Моќност: минимум 10W / Ефикасност: минимум 65% |
| USB приклучоци за полнење на мобилни уреди: минимум 2. Моќност (по порт): 5W (1A). Заштита од краток спој, LED светло |
| Овозможува Wi-Fi безжичен интернет. Покриеност: минимум 20 метри |
| Бројач за полначите на уреди (кабелски и безжични) |
| Сензор за температура (-45°C, + 60°C) |
| Сензор за влажност (0% - 100%) |
| Бројач на интернет конекции и користење на сообраќај на податоци |
| Бројач на производство и потрошувачка на енергија |
| Системски сензор за анализи на секој уред во внатрешноста на клупата |
| Статус на батеријата |
| Сензор за дожд - ја исклучува клупата во случај на силен дожд |
| Можност за конекција со Интернет преку SIM, LAN или оптика. |
| Систем за воздушно ладење со вентилатори/кулери. Температура на активација: над 35°C |
| Амбиентално светло |
| Индикативното светло при безжично полнење |
| LCD екран минимум 19 инчи со минимум 1000cd/m² осветленост. |
| Материјали отпорни на надворешни влијанија и вандализам |
| ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| **4.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со паметните клупи (SaaS), 1** |
| Веб базиран портал за пристап со корисничко име и лозинка |
| Преглед на целокупната инфраструкура од паметни клупи |
| Приказ на мапа со точна локација на паметните клупи |
| Информации за работењето на паметните клупи со можност за прилагодување на даден период  Информации за работењето на паметните клупи прикажани со графици |
| Можност за промена на поставките (SSID на бежичната мрежа која ја зрачи клупата, линк за редирекција при поврзување на корисникот, лимитирање на број на корисници на дневна основа кои можат да се поврзат на бежичната мрежа, лимитирање на количина на сообраќај на податоци по корисник на дневна основа, можност за поставување видео запис/кампања на дисплејот од клупата, прилагодлив период кога кампањата е активна, вклучување/исклучување на амбиенталното светло во зависност од годишен период, промена на индикативното светло при безжично полнење) |
| **4.3 Дополнителни трошоци / услуги, 1** |
| Транспортни трошоци до Езеро Младост, Велес |
| Инсталација на паметните клупи |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот |

1. **e-Bikes with smart locks**

The aim of this system is to offer alternative ways of enjoying the nature and the area. As an eco-type of transport and recreational device, e-bikes will offer added value to the project. The mobile app will allow online payment for the service.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the bikes, offering to the Municipality necessary information for planning and developing policies for this kind of services and their financial effects. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **5** | **Велосипеди со софтвер за управување со паметни брави за заклучување** |
| * 1. **Велосипеди, 20** |
| Велосипед: Електричен Mount Bike 26"-28”, алуминиумски рам, со мин. 5 брзини |
| Дистанца со едно полнење минимун 45км |
| Максимална брзина 32км/ч |
| Предно и задно светло за визулена идентификација во ноќни услови |
| * 1. **Паметни брави за заклучување, 20** |
| Паметна брава со GPS, GPRS и Bluetooth |
| Минимум IP56 заштита од временски услови |
| Работна температура: од –30°C до +60°C |
| Уред тестиран за заштита при кражба (Акцелерометар со тројна оска за детекција на движење) |
| Температурен сензор: детекција обид за замрзнување и топење |
| LED индикатор  Минимум 100dB сирена за алармирање |
| Bluetooth 4.x технологија со опсег до 10 метри |
| AES шифрирана безбедносна заштита |
| Далечинско управување преку GSM |
| Цврст челичен оков |
| Приспособливи подесувања на батеријата |
| Вклучен полнач/адаптер и сите дополнителни елементи за монтажа |
| Пристап без клуч, преку Bluetooth |
| Неограничен број на корисници |
| GPS следење (прецизност: максимум одстапување 3m) |
| Сертификација: CE, IC, FCC |
| Компатибилност со понудена мобилна апликација |
| * 1. **Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со бравите за заклучување на велосипедите (SaaS), 1** |
| Следење на велосипедите во реално време |
| Напредна geofencing технологија која ви овозможува контрола каде корисниците можат да ги паркираат своите велосипеди |
| Преглед на однесувањето на корисникот во однос на движење со велосипедот |
| Преглед на начини за користење велосипед |
| Сортирање на податоци според временски период |
| Додавање и бришење на корисници |
| Надзор и контрола на целокупниот број на велосипеди |
| Добивање известувања од теренот (велосипедистите можат да испратат извештај преку мобилна апликација - и да го алармираат администраторот на контролната табла) |
| * 1. **Апликации за крајни корисници (SaaS), 1** |
| Компатибилна со минимум Android 4.0+ и iOS 8+ |
| Информации за велосипедистите: време на користење, потрошени калории, изминато растојание |
| Лоцирање и/или резервација на велосипед |
| Одклучување/заклучување на велосипед |
| Примање на алерти/нотификации во апликацијата |
| Плаќање за услугата |
| * 1. **Дополнителни трошоци / услуги, 1** |
| Транспортни трошоци до Езеро Младост, Велес |
| Инсталација на бравите за заклучување на велосипедите |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот |

1. **Smart solution for waste management**

The aim of this system is to provide intelligent control of the waste containers. This will contribute to reduce the cost of waste collection. The municipality will follow and control the waste and the collection through the mobile and central application.

The purpose of the software solution based on a “cloud” is to facilitate the management and control of the waste and its collection, offering to the Municipality necessary information for planning and developing policies for this kind of services and their financial effects. It will also increase the security of the data and ensure authorized access only.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **6** | **Паметно решение за отпад** |
| **6.1 Сензор за мерење на ниво на исполнетост на контејнер, 5** |
| Ултразвучен сензор за мерење на нивото на исполнетост |
| Степен на заштита: IP67, IK10 |
| Модул за температура за детекција на пожар |
| Единица за напојување со минимална издржливост од 5 години |
| Издржлив за надворешна употреба, отпорен на вандализам |
| Поврзување преку SIM картичка (мобилна мрежа) |
| Различни опции за монтирање во корпата за отпадоци/контејнер |
| **6.2 Софтвер како услуга за контрола и управување со системот (SaaS), 1** |
| Корисничко име и лозинка за авторизација на пристап |
| Модул за доделување на различни нивоа на пристап базиран на улоги (role based access) |
| Приказ и администрација на податоци за собирање на отпад во реално време |
| Приказ и администрација во реално време на податоците за нивото на пополнетост на контејнерот со отпад |
| Автоматска оптимизација на рутите за собирање на отпад |
| Автоматска оптимизација на флота (број и тип на возилата за собирање отпад потребни за собирните рути) |
| Алгоритми за анализа за предвидување на временската рамка за потребното крајното ниво на пополнување со отпад |
| Обезбедување на статистички податоци |
| Известување за предупредувања преку SMS / е-мејл / мобилни апликации |
| Автоматско планирање на собирните рути базирано на предупредувањата / сигналите |
| Препораки за паметно управување со отпад (доцнење, девијација од рута, отсуство од работа) |
| Испраќање и обработка на работни налози за возачи |
| Комуникација со возачите додека се во процес на собирање |
| Интерактивна и динамична промена на рутата |
| Следење во реално време на возилата за собирање на отпад (информации за тековната локација на возилото, статусот на моторот и брзината), вклучувајќи историја на следење |
| Известување и експорт на податоци |
| Можност за поврзување со други системи и синхронизација на податоци со софтвер за наплата |
| **6.3 Андроид таблет, 1** |
| Android таблет со GPS и поддршка на SIM картичка. |
| Дим. на дисплеј: минимум 10 инчи. |
| Внатрешна меморија: мин. 32GB. |
| RAM: мин. 2GB. |
| Екстерна меморија: можност за микро SD. |
| Процесор: Octa-core или еквивалент. |
| ISO 9001: 2015 Quality Management System  ISO / IEC 14001: 2015 Environmental Management Standard |
| **6.4 Мобилна апликација за возила (SaaS), 1** |
| Android и/или iOS базирана мобилна апликација за возачите на возилата за собирање на отпад |
| Безбедна апликација за Android со можност за различни корисници со дефинирани привилегии за најавување |
| Примање на рути и работни налози во-движење |
| Навигација во реално време и оптимизација на рути преку добиената рута од мапа |
| Графички приказ и администрирање на сите канти за отпадоци / контејнери на мапа |
| Извештаи за проблемите во реално време (проблем со камионите, исчезнати или оштетени контејнери) и можност за испраќање фотографии |
| Информации во реално време за движење и локација на возилото |
| По опслужувањето на контејнерот, возачот добива известување за тоа каде да оди понатаму |
| **6.5 Дополнителни трошоци/услуги , 1** |
| Транспортни трошоци до Езеро Младост, Велес |
| Инсталација на сензорите |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение |
| Еднократна обука за персоналот кој ќе работи на системот |

1. Integrated software solution for supervision and control of the smart components – Mayor’s Dashboard

The control board (Dashboard) is aimed at integrating all smart components into one IoT (Internet of Things) system. It is supposed to present the central nervous system which will follow, analyse, optimize, alarm when needed, and present all relevant parameters.

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| **7** | **Интегрирано софтверско решение за надзор и контрола на смарт елементи - градоначалничка табла (SaaS)** |
| Интегрираното софтверско решение како услуга за смарт елементи треба да обезбеди интеграција на податоци од наброените паметни решенија - софтверски според техничките спецификации - соодветно според потребите на секое поединечно решение. |
| Визуелизацијата на податоците да може да се следи во реално време и на различни уреди и платформи (пр. градска контролна табла, мониторинг центар, веб-базирани дашборди, преку мобилни апликации и сл.) |
| Дашбордот треба да обезбедува податоци за различни кориснички групи (од граѓаните до специјализираните домени на општината и јавните претпријатија, се до градоначалникот). |
| Решението треба да нуди контролиран користички преглед на информациите, според доделените ингеренции. |
| Треба да ги прикажува параметрите од интегрираните паметни решенија, но треба да има можност и за надградба за да обезбедува информации собрани од различни извори/платформи. |
| Сублимација и структурирано преставување на сите релеватни инфорамции од сите интегрирани паметни решенија посебно - модуларно |
| Сублимација и структурирано преставување на сите релеватни инфорамции од сите интегрирани паметни решенија според потребите на корисникот за анализи или презентации |
| Можност за надградување и поврзување со други платворми |
| Решението треба да биде хостирано во безбеден центар за податоци |
| Пуштање во работа на целото решение |
| Обука на персонал кој ќе работи на системот |

**Other requirements**

Аll goods and materials to be incorporated in the goods should be new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials.

The Purchaser should give a Statement for availability of spare parts and after-sales services for a minimum 7 years after warranty period of preferably 3 years has expired. For all elements of the system that have limited life span, spare parts and service should be provided for a period of 10 years (warranty period included).

Projected operating and maintenance costs during the life of the equipment should be less than 20% of the equipment offered in the bid.

The bidder should separately state any additional running cost per smart item against the beneficiary after the completion of the implementation, resulting from the technology implemented (ex. monthly fee for SIM cards and Internet, if a piece of equipment operates on this technology).

Bidders should propose Project plan, with clear implementation phases. Inspections and tests will be conducted according to the defined schedule when milestones are reached.

All software solutions listed as a service (SaaS - Software as a service) to be with a minimum warranty and maintenance period of 36 months. Projected post-warranty period maintenance and licensing cost per annum shall be separately stated in the offer.

The software solution should be upgradeable and available for future expansion.

The economic operator should provide a dedicated focal point for coordination – Project Manager, with at least 3 successful implementations on record of similar smart integrations.

Manufacturer’s authorization form is required for all items that are part of the bid.

3. Drawings

These Bidding Documents includes the followingdrawings.

|  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- |
| **List of Drawings** | | |
| **Drawing Nr.** | **Drawing Name** | **Purpose** |
| 1 | Map of the lake with the positions for the lights. | Planning of technologies and works related to: installations, wireless communications ranges, network coverage, distance from water, etc. |
| 2 | Map of the parking lot with marked car positions, entrance, exit, board position. | Planning of sensor positions, infrastructure works for gates and sensors, cablings, board visibility, network coverage, etc. |

4. Inspections and Tests

The following inspections and tests shall be performed:

* *Hardware delivery inspections*
* *Hardware installation and functionality tests*
* *Software functionality tests*
* *Integration inspection and testing (phased or bulk, depending on the proposed Project implementation plan)*
* *Final acceptance test*

The methodology and testing scenarios shall be provided by the contractor through consultations with the beneficiary.

# PART 3 - Contract

|  |
| --- |
| Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract |

**Table of Clauses**

1. Definitions 83

2. Contract Documents 84

3. Fraud and Corruption 84

4. Interpretation 84

5. Language 85

6. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association 86

7. Eligibility 86

8. Notices 86

9. Governing Law 86

10. Settlement of Disputes 87

11. Inspections and Audit by the Bank 87

12. Scope of Supply 88

13. Delivery and Documents 88

14. Supplier’s Responsibilities 88

15. Contract Price 88

16. Terms of Payment 88

17. Taxes and Duties 88

18. Performance Security 89

19. Copyright 89

20. Confidential Information 89

21. Subcontracting 90

22. Specifications and Standards 91

23. Packing and Documents 91

24. Insurance 91

25. Transportation and Incidental Services 92

26. Inspections and Tests 92

27. Liquidated Damages 93

28. Warranty 94

29. Patent Indemnity 94

30. Limitation of Liability 96

31. Change in Laws and Regulations 96

32. Force Majeure 96

33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments 97

34. Extensions of Time 97

35. Termination 98

36. Assignment 99

37. Export Restriction 99

**Section VIII. General Conditions of Contract**

|  |  |  |  |
| --- | --- | --- | --- |
| 1. Definitions | | 1.1 The following words and expressions shall have the meanings hereby assigned to them: “Bank” means the World Bank and refers to the International Bank for Reconstruction and Development (IBRD) or the International Development Association (IDA).“Contract” means the Contract Agreement entered into between the Purchaser and the Supplier, together with the Contract Documents referred to therein, including all attachments, appendices, and all documents incorporated by reference therein.“Contract Documents” means the documents listed in the Contract Agreement, including any amendments thereto.“Contract Price” means the price payable to the Supplier as specified in the Contract Agreement, subject to such additions and adjustments thereto or deductions therefrom, as may be made pursuant to the Contract.“Day” means calendar day.“Completion” means the fulfillment of the Related Services by the Supplier in accordance with the terms and conditions set forth in the Contract.“GCC” means the General Conditions of Contract.“Goods” means all of the commodities, raw material, machinery and equipment, and/or other materials that the Supplier is required to supply to the Purchaser under the Contract.“Purchaser’s Country” is the country specified in the Special Conditions of Contract (SCC).“Purchaser” means the entity purchasing the Goods and Related Services, as specified in the **SCC.**“Related Services” means the services incidental to the supply of the goods, such as insurance, installation, training and initial maintenance and other such obligations of the Supplier under the Contract.“SCC” means the Special Conditions of Contract.“Subcontractor” means any person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, to whom any part of the Goods to be supplied or execution of any part of the Related Services is subcontracted by the Supplier.“Supplier” means the person, private or government entity, or a combination of the above, whose bid to perform the Contract has been accepted by the Purchaser and is named as such in the Contract Agreement.“The Project Site,” where applicable, means the place named in the **SCC.** | |
| 2. Contract Documents | | * 1. Subject to the order of precedence set forth in the Contract Agreement, all documents forming the Contract (and all parts thereof) are intended to be correlative, complementary, and mutually explanatory. The Contract Agreement shall be read as a whole. | |
| 3. Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices | | 3.1 The Bank requires compliance with its policy in regard to corrupt and fraudulent practices as set forth in Appendix to the GCC.  3.2 The Purchaser requires the Supplier to disclose any commissions or fees that may have been paid or are to be paid to agents or any other party with respect to the bidding process or execution of the Contract. The information disclosed must include at least the name and address of the agent or other party, the amount and currency, and the purpose of the commission, gratuity or fee. | |
| 4. Interpretation | | * 1. If the context so requires it, singular means plural and vice versa.   2. Incoterms  Unless inconsistent with any provision of the Contract**,** the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of parties thereunder shall be as prescribed by Incoterms.The terms EXW, CIP, FCA, CFR and other similar terms, when used, shall be governed by the rules prescribed in the current edition of Incoterms specified in the **SCC** and published by the International Chamber of Commerce in Paris, France.  * 1. Entire Agreement   The Contract constitutes the entire agreement between the Purchaser and the Supplier and supersedes all communications, negotiations and agreements (whether written or oral) of the parties with respect thereto made prior to the date of Contract.   * 1. Amendment   No amendment or other variation of the Contract shall be valid unless it is in writing, is dated, expressly refers to the Contract, and is signed by a duly authorized representative of each party thereto.   * 1. Nonwaiver  Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 4.5(b) below, no relaxation, forbearance, delay, or indulgence by either party in enforcing any of the terms and conditions of the Contract or the granting of time by either party to the other shall prejudice, affect, or restrict the rights of that party under the Contract, neither shall any waiver by either party of any breach of Contract operate as waiver of any subsequent or continuing breach of Contract.Any waiver of a party’s rights, powers, or remedies under the Contract must be in writing, dated, and signed by an authorized representative of the party granting such waiver, and must specify the right and the extent to which it is being waived.  * 1. Severability   If any provision or condition of the Contract is prohibited or rendered invalid or unenforceable, such prohibition, invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect the validity or enforceability of any other provisions and conditions of the Contract. | |
| 5. Language | | * 1. The Contract as well as all correspondence and documents relating to the Contract exchanged by the Supplier and the Purchaser, shall be written in the language specified in the **SCC.** Supporting documents and printed literature that are part of the Contract may be in another language provided they are accompanied by an accurate translation of the relevant passages in the language specified**,** in which case, for purposes of interpretation of the Contract, this translation shall govern.   2. The Supplier shall bear all costs of translation to the governing language and all risks of the accuracy of such translation, for documents provided by the Supplier. | |
| 6. Joint Venture, Consortium or Association | | * 1. If the Supplier is a joint venture, consortium, or association, all of the parties shall be jointly and severally liable to the Purchaser for the fulfillment of the provisions of the Contract and shall designate one party to act as a leader with authority to bind the joint venture, consortium, or association. The composition or the constitution of the joint venture, consortium, or association shall not be altered without the prior consent of the Purchaser. | |
| 7. Eligibility | | * 1. The Supplier and its Subcontractors shall have the nationality of an eligible country. A Supplier or Subcontractor shall be deemed to have the nationality of a country if it is a citizen or constituted, incorporated, or registered, and operates in conformity with the provisions of the laws of that country.   2. All Goods and Related Services to be supplied under the Contract and financed by the Bank shall have their origin in Eligible Countries. For the purpose of this Clause, origin means the country where the goods have been grown, mined, cultivated, produced, manufactured, or processed; or through manufacture, processing, or assembly, another commercially recognized article results that differs substantially in its basic characteristics from its components. | |
| 8. Notices | | * 1. Any notice given by one party to the other pursuant to the Contract shall be in writing to the address specified in the **SCC.** The term “in writing” means communicated in written form with proof of receipt.   2. A notice shall be effective when delivered or on the notice’s effective date, whichever is later. | |
| 9. Governing Law | * 1. The Contract shall be governed by and interpreted in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser’s Country, unless otherwise specified in the **SCC.**   2. Throughout the execution of the Contract, the Contractor shall comply with the import of goods and services prohibitions in the Purchaser’s country when   (a) as a matter of law or official regulations, the Borrower’s country prohibits commercial relations with that country; or   * 1. (b) by an act of compliance with a decision of the United Nations Security Council taken under Chapter VII of the Charter of the United Nations, the Borrower’s Country prohibits any import of goods from that country or any payments to any country, person, or entity in that country. |
| 10 Settlement of Disputes | * 1. The Purchaser and the Supplier shall make every effort to resolve amicably by direct informal negotiation any disagreement or dispute arising between them under or in connection with the Contract.   2. If, after twenty-eight (28) days, the parties have failed to resolve their dispute or difference by such mutual consultation, then either the Purchaser or the Supplier may give notice to the other party of its intention to commence arbitration, as hereinafter provided, as to the matter in dispute, and no arbitration in respect of this matter may be commenced unless such notice is given. Any dispute or difference in respect of which a notice of intention to commence arbitration has been given in accordance with this Clause shall be finally settled by arbitration. Arbitration may be commenced prior to or after delivery of the Goods under the Contract. Arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in accordance with the rules of procedure **specified in the SCC.**   3. Notwithstanding any reference to arbitration herein,      1. the parties shall continue to perform their respective obligations under the Contract unless they otherwise agree; and      2. the Purchaser shall pay the Supplier any monies due the Supplier. |
| 11. Inspections and Audit by the Bank | * 1. The Supplier shall keep, and shall make all reasonable efforts to cause its Subcontractors to keep, accurate and systematic accounts and records in respect of the Goods in such form and details as will clearly identify relevant time changes and costs.   2. The Supplier shall permit, and shall cause its Subcontractors to permit, the Bank and/or persons appointed by the Bank to inspect the Supplier’s offices and all accounts and records relating to the performance of the Contract and the submission of the bid, and to have such accounts and records audited by auditors appointed by the Bank if requested by the Bank. The Supplier’s and its Subcontractors and consultants’ attention is drawn to Clause 3 [Fraud and Corruption], which provides, inter alia, that acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank’s inspection and audit rights provided for under this Sub-Clause 11.1 constitute a prohibited practice subject to contract termination (as well as to a determination of ineligibility pursuant to the Bank’s prevailing sanctions procedures) |
| 12. Scope of Supply | 12.1 The Goods and Related Services to be supplied shall be as specified in the Schedule of Requirements. |
| 13. Delivery and Documents | 13.1 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 33.1, the Delivery of the Goods and Completion of the Related Services shall be in accordance with the Delivery and Completion Schedule specified in the Schedule of Requirements. The details of shipping and other documents to be furnished by the Supplier are specified in the **SCC.** |
| 14. Supplier’s Responsibilities | 14.1 The Supplier shall supply all the Goods and Related Services included in the Scope of Supply in accordance with GCC Clause 12, and the Delivery and Completion Schedule, as per GCC Clause 13. |
| 15 Contract Price | 15.1 Prices charged by the Supplier for the Goods supplied and the Related Services performed under the Contract shall not vary from the prices quoted by the Supplier in its bid, with the exception of any price adjustments authorized in the **SCC.** |
| 16. Terms of Payment | 16.1 The Contract Price, including any Advance Payments, if applicable, shall be paid as specified in the **SCC.**  16.2 The Supplier’s request for payment shall be made to the Purchaser in writing, accompanied by invoices describing, as appropriate, the Goods delivered and Related Services performed, and by the documents submitted pursuant to GCC Clause 13 and upon fulfillment of all other obligations stipulated in the Contract.  16.3 Payments shall be made promptly by the Purchaser, but in no case later than sixty (60) days after submission of an invoice or request for payment by the Supplier, and after the Purchaser has accepted it.  16.4 The currencies in which payments shall be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be those in which the bid price is expressed.  16.5 In the event that the Purchaser fails to pay the Supplier any payment by its due date or within the period set forth in the **SCC,** the Purchaser shall pay to the Supplier interest on the amount of such delayed payment at the rate shown in the **SCC,** for the period of delay until payment has been made in full, whether before or after judgment or arbitrage award. |
| 17. Taxes and Duties | 17.1 For goods manufactured outside the Purchaser’s Country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, stamp duties, license fees, and other such levies imposed outside the Purchaser’s Country.  17.2 For goods Manufactured within the Purchaser’s country, the Supplier shall be entirely responsible for all taxes, duties, license fees, etc., incurred until delivery of the contracted Goods to the Purchaser.  17.3 If any tax exemptions, reductions, allowances or privileges may be available to the Supplier in the Purchaser’s Country, the Purchaser shall use its best efforts to enable the Supplier to benefit from any such tax savings to the maximum allowable extent. |
| 18. Performance Security | 18.1 If required as specified in the SCC, the Supplier shall, within twenty-eight (28) days of the notification of contract award, provide a performance security for the performance of the Contract in the amount specified in the **SCC.**  18.2 The proceeds of the Performance Security shall be payable to the Purchaser as compensation for any loss resulting from the Supplier’s failure to complete its obligations under the Contract.  18.3 As specified in the SCC, the Performance Security, if required, shall be denominated in the currency(ies) of the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser; and shall be in one of the format stipulated by the Purchaser in the **SCC,** or in another format acceptable to the Purchaser.  18.4 The Performance Security shall be discharged by the Purchaser and returned to the Supplier not later than twenty-eight (28) days following the date of Completion of the Supplier’s performance obligations under the Contract, including any warranty obligations, unless specified otherwise in the **SCC.** |
| 19. Copyright | 19.1 The copyright in all drawings, documents, and other materials containing data and information furnished to the Purchaser by the Supplier herein shall remain vested in the Supplier, or, if they are furnished to the Purchaser directly or through the Supplier by any third party, including suppliers of materials, the copyright in such materials shall remain vested in such third party |
| 20. Confidential Information | 20.1 The Purchaser and the Supplier shall keep confidential and shall not, without the written consent of the other party hereto, divulge to any third party any documents, data, or other information furnished directly or indirectly by the other party hereto in connection with the Contract, whether such information has been furnished prior to, during or following completion or termination of the Contract. Notwithstanding the above, the Supplier may furnish to its Subcontractor such documents, data, and other information it receives from the Purchaser to the extent required for the Subcontractor to perform its work under the Contract, in which event the Supplier shall obtain from such Subcontractor an undertaking of confidentiality similar to that imposed on the Supplier under GCC Clause 20.  20.2 The Purchaser shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Supplier for any purposes unrelated to the contract. Similarly, the Supplier shall not use such documents, data, and other information received from the Purchaser for any purpose other than the performance of the Contract.  20.3 The obligation of a party under GCC Sub-Clauses 20.1 and 20.2 above, however, shall not apply to information that: the Purchaser or Supplier need to share with the Bank or other institutions participating in the financing of the Contract;now or hereafter enters the public domain through no fault of that party;can be proven to have been possessed by that party at the time of disclosure and which was not previously obtained, directly or indirectly, from the other party; orotherwise lawfully becomes available to that party from a third party that has no obligation of confidentiality. 20.4 The above provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall not in any way modify any undertaking of confidentiality given by either of the parties hereto prior to the date of the Contract in respect of the Supply or any part thereof.  20.5 The provisions of GCC Clause 20 shall survive completion or termination, for whatever reason, of the Contract. |
| 21. Subcontracting | 21.1 The Supplier shall notify the Purchaser in writing of all subcontracts awarded under the Contract if not already specified in the bid. Such notification, in the original bid or later shall not relieve the Supplier from any of its obligations, duties, responsibilities, or liability under the Contract.  21.2 Subcontracts shall comply with the provisions of GCC Clauses 3 and 7. |
| 22. Specifications and Standards | 22.1 Technical Specifications and Drawings The Goods and Related Services supplied under this Contract shall conform to the technical specifications and standards mentioned in Section VI, Schedule of Requirements and, when no applicable standard is mentioned, the standard shall be equivalent or superior to the official standards whose application is appropriate to the Goods’ country of origin.The Supplier shall be entitled to disclaim responsibility for any design, data, drawing, specification or other document, or any modification thereof provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser, by giving a notice of such disclaimer to the Purchaser.Wherever references are made in the Contract to codes and standards in accordance with which it shall be executed, the edition or the revised version of such codes and standards shall be those specified in the Schedule of Requirements. During Contract execution, any changes in any such codes and standards shall be applied only after approval by the Purchaser and shall be treated in accordance with GCC Clause 33. |
| 23. Packing and Documents | 23.1 The Supplier shall provide such packing of the Goods as is required to prevent their damage or deterioration during transit to their final destination, as indicated in the Contract. During transit, the packing shall be sufficient to withstand, without limitation, rough handling and exposure to extreme temperatures, salt and precipitation, and open storage. Packing case size and weights shall take into consideration, where appropriate, the remoteness of the goods’ final destination and the absence of heavy handling facilities at all points in transit.  23.2 The packing, marking, and documentation within and outside the packages shall comply strictly with such special requirements as shall be expressly provided for in the Contract, including additional requirements, if any, specified in the **SCC,** and in any other instructions ordered by the Purchaser. |
| 24. Insurance | 24.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC,** the Goods supplied under the Contract shall be fully insured—in a freely convertible currency from an eligible country—against loss or damage incidental to manufacture or acquisition, transportation, storage, and delivery, in accordance with the applicable Incoterms or in the manner specified in the **SCC.** |
| 25. Transportation and Incidental Services | 25.1 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC,** responsibility for arranging transportation of the Goods shall be in accordance with the specified Incoterms. |
|  | 25.2 The Supplier may be required to provide any or all of the following services, including additional services, if any, **specified in SCC:**  (a) performance or supervision of on-site assembly and/or start‑up of the supplied Goods;  (b) furnishing of tools required for assembly and/or maintenance of the supplied Goods;  (c) furnishing of a detailed operations and maintenance manual for each appropriate unit of the supplied Goods;  (d) performance or supervision or maintenance and/or repair of the supplied Goods, for a period of time agreed by the parties, provided that this service shall not relieve the Supplier of any warranty obligations under this Contract; and  (e) training of the Purchaser’s personnel, at the Supplier’s plant and/or on-site, in assembly, start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods.  25.3 Prices charged by the Supplier for incidental services, if not included in the Contract Price for the Goods, shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services |
| 26. Inspections and Tests | 26.1 The Supplier shall at its own expense and at no cost to the Purchaser carry out all such tests and/or inspections of the Goods and Related Services as are specified in the **SCC.**  26.2 The inspections and tests may be conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, at point of delivery, and/or at the Goods’ final destination, or in another place in the Purchaser’s Country as specified in the **SCC.** Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 26.3, if conducted on the premises of the Supplier or its Subcontractor, all reasonable facilities and assistance, including access to drawings and production data, shall be furnished to the inspectors at no charge to the Purchaser.  26.3 The Purchaser or its designated representative shall be entitled to attend the tests and/or inspections referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 26.2, provided that the Purchaser bear all of its own costs and expenses incurred in connection with such attendance including, but not limited to, all traveling and board and lodging expenses.  26.4 Whenever the Supplier is ready to carry out any such test and inspection, it shall give a reasonable advance notice, including the place and time, to the Purchaser. The Supplier shall obtain from any relevant third party or manufacturer any necessary permission or consent to enable the Purchaser or its designated representative to attend the test and/or inspection.  26.5 The Purchaser may require the Supplier to carry out any test and/or inspection not required by the Contract but deemed necessary to verify that the characteristics and performance of the Goods comply with the technical specifications codes and standards under the Contract, provided that the Supplier’s reasonable costs and expenses incurred in the carrying out of such test and/or inspection shall be added to the Contract Price. Further, if such test and/or inspection impedes the progress of manufacturing and/or the Supplier’s performance of its other obligations under the Contract, due allowance will be made in respect of the Delivery Dates and Completion Dates and the other obligations so affected.  26.6 The Supplier shall provide the Purchaser with a report of the results of any such test and/or inspection.  26.7 The Purchaser may reject any Goods or any part thereof that fail to pass any test and/or inspection or do not conform to the specifications. The Supplier shall either rectify or replace such rejected Goods or parts thereof or make alterations necessary to meet the specifications at no cost to the Purchaser, and shall repeat the test and/or inspection, at no cost to the Purchaser, upon giving a notice pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.4.  26.8 The Supplier agrees that neither the execution of a test and/or inspection of the Goods or any part thereof, nor the attendance by the Purchaser or its representative, nor the issue of any report pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 26.6, shall release the Supplier from any warranties or other obligations under the Contract. |
| 27. Liquidated Damages | 27.1 Except as provided under GCC Clause 32, if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods by the Date(s) of delivery or perform the Related Services within the period specified in the Contract, the Purchaser may without prejudice to all its other remedies under the Contract, deduct from the Contract Price, as liquidated damages, a sum equivalent to the percentage specified in the **SCC** of the delivered price of the delayed Goods or unperformed Services for each week or part thereof of delay until actual delivery or performance, up to a maximum deduction of the percentage specified in those **SCC.** Once the maximum is reached, the Purchaser may terminate the Contract pursuant to GCC Clause 35. |
| 28. Warranty | 28.1 The Supplier warrants that all the Goods are new, unused, and of the most recent or current models, and that they incorporate all recent improvements in design and materials, unless provided otherwise in the Contract.  28.2 Subject to GCC Sub-Clause 22.1(b), the Supplier further warrants that the Goods shall be free from defects arising from any act or omission of the Supplier or arising from design, materials, and workmanship, under normal use in the conditions prevailing in the country of final destination.  28.3 Unless otherwise specified in the **SCC,** the warranty shall remain valid for twelve (12) months after the Goods, or any portion thereof as the case may be, have been delivered to and accepted at the final destination indicated in the **SCC,** or for eighteen (18) months after the date of shipment from the port or place of loading in the country of origin, whichever period concludes earlier.  28.4 The Purchaser shall give notice to the Supplier stating the nature of any such defects together with all available evidence thereof, promptly following the discovery thereof. The Purchaser shall afford all reasonable opportunity for the Supplier to inspect such defects.  28.5 Upon receipt of such notice, the Supplier shall, within the period specified in the **SCC,** expeditiously repair or replace the defective Goods or parts thereof, at no cost to the Purchaser.  28.6 If having been notified, the Supplier fails to remedy the defect within the period specified in the **SCC,** the Purchaser may proceed to take within a reasonable period such remedial action as may be necessary, at the Supplier’s risk and expense and without prejudice to any other rights which the Purchaser may have against the Supplier under the Contract. |
| 29. Patent Indemnity | 29.1 The Supplier shall, subject to the Purchaser’s compliance with GCC Sub-Clause 29.2, indemnify and hold harmless the Purchaser and its employees and officers from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Purchaser may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract by reason of: the installation of the Goods by the Supplier or the use of the Goods in the country where the Site is located; andthe sale in any country of the products produced by the Goods.Such indemnity shall not cover any use of the Goods or any part thereof other than for the purpose indicated by or to be reasonably inferred from the Contract, neither any infringement resulting from the use of the Goods or any part thereof, or any products produced thereby in association or combination with any other equipment, plant, or materials not supplied by the Supplier, pursuant to the Contract. 29.2 If any proceedings are brought or any claim is made against the Purchaser arising out of the matters referred to in GCC Sub-Clause 29.1, the Purchaser shall promptly give the Supplier a notice thereof, and the Supplier may at its own expense and in the Purchaser’s name conduct such proceedings or claim and any negotiations for the settlement of any such proceedings or claim.  29.3 If the Supplier fails to notify the Purchaser within twenty-eight (28) days after receipt of such notice that it intends to conduct any such proceedings or claim, then the Purchaser shall be free to conduct the same on its own behalf.  29.4 The Purchaser shall, at the Supplier’s request, afford all available assistance to the Supplier in conducting such proceedings or claim, and shall be reimbursed by the Supplier for all reasonable expenses incurred in so doing.  29.5 The Purchaser shall indemnify and hold harmless the Supplier and its employees, officers, and Subcontractors from and against any and all suits, actions or administrative proceedings, claims, demands, losses, damages, costs, and expenses of any nature, including attorney’s fees and expenses, which the Supplier may suffer as a result of any infringement or alleged infringement of any patent, utility model, registered design, trademark, copyright, or other intellectual property right registered or otherwise existing at the date of the Contract arising out of or in connection with any design, data, drawing, specification, or other documents or materials provided or designed by or on behalf of the Purchaser. |
| 30 Limitation of Liability | 30.1 Except in cases of criminal negligence or willful misconduct,  (a) the Supplier shall not be liable to the Purchaser, whether in contract, tort, or otherwise, for any indirect or consequential loss or damage, loss of use, loss of production, or loss of profits or interest costs, provided that this exclusion shall not apply to any obligation of the Supplier to pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser and  (b) the aggregate liability of the Supplier to the Purchaser, whether under the Contract, in tort or otherwise, shall not exceed the total Contract Price, provided that this limitation shall not apply to the cost of repairing or replacing defective equipment, or to any obligation of the supplier to indemnify the purchaser with respect to patent infringement |
| 31. Change in Laws and Regulations | 31.1 Unless otherwise specified in the Contract, if after the date of 28 days prior to date of Bid submission, any law, regulation, ordinance, order or bylaw having the force of law is enacted, promulgated, abrogated, or changed in the place of the Purchaser’s country where the Site is located (which shall be deemed to include any change in interpretation or application by the competent authorities) that subsequently affects the Delivery Date and/or the Contract Price, then such Delivery Date and/or Contract Price shall be correspondingly increased or decreased, to the extent that the Supplier has thereby been affected in the performance of any of its obligations under the Contract. Notwithstanding the foregoing, such additional or reduced cost shall not be separately paid or credited if the same has already been accounted for in the price adjustment provisions where applicable, in accordance with GCC Clause 15. |
| 32. Force Majeure | 32.1 The Supplier shall not be liable for forfeiture of its Performance Security, liquidated damages, or termination for default if and to the extent that its delay in performance or other failure to perform its obligations under the Contract is the result of an event of Force Majeure.  32.2 For purposes of this Clause, “Force Majeure” means an event or situation beyond the control of the Supplier that is not foreseeable, is unavoidable, and its origin is not due to negligence or lack of care on the part of the Supplier. Such events may include, but not be limited to, acts of the Purchaser in its sovereign capacity, wars or revolutions, fires, floods, epidemics, quarantine restrictions, and freight embargoes.  32.3 If a Force Majeure situation arises, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of such condition and the cause thereof. Unless otherwise directed by the Purchaser in writing, the Supplier shall continue to perform its obligations under the Contract as far as is reasonably practical, and shall seek all reasonable alternative means for performance not prevented by the Force Majeure event. |
| 33. Change Orders and Contract Amendments | 33.1 The Purchaser may at any time order the Supplier through notice in accordance GCC Clause 8, to make changes within the general scope of the Contract in any one or more of the following: drawings, designs, or specifications, where Goods to be furnished under the Contract are to be specifically manufactured for the Purchaser;the method of shipment or packing;the place of delivery; andthe Related Services to be provided by the Supplier. 33.2 If any such change causes an increase or decrease in the cost of, or the time required for, the Supplier’s performance of any provisions under the Contract, an equitable adjustment shall be made in the Contract Price or in the Delivery/Completion Schedule, or both, and the Contract shall accordingly be amended. Any claims by the Supplier for adjustment under this Clause must be asserted within twenty-eight (28) days from the date of the Supplier’s receipt of the Purchaser’s change order.  33.3 Prices to be charged by the Supplier for any Related Services that might be needed but which were not included in the Contract shall be agreed upon in advance by the parties and shall not exceed the prevailing rates charged to other parties by the Supplier for similar services.  33.4 Subject to the above, no variation in or modification of the terms of the Contract shall be made except by written amendment signed by the parties. |
| 34. Extensions of Time | 34.1 If at any time during performance of the Contract, the Supplier or its subcontractors should encounter conditions impeding timely delivery of the Goods or completion of Related Services pursuant to GCC Clause 13, the Supplier shall promptly notify the Purchaser in writing of the delay, its likely duration, and its cause. As soon as practicable after receipt of the Supplier’s notice, the Purchaser shall evaluate the situation and may at its discretion extend the Supplier’s time for performance, in which case the extension shall be ratified by the parties by amendment of the Contract.  34.2 Except in case of Force Majeure, as provided under GCC Clause 32, a delay by the Supplier in the performance of its Delivery and Completion obligations shall render the Supplier liable to the imposition of liquidated damages pursuant to GCC Clause 26, unless an extension of time is agreed upon, pursuant to GCC Sub-Clause 34.1. |
| 35. Termination | 35.1 Termination for Default The Purchaser, without prejudice to any other remedy for breach of Contract, by written notice of default sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract in whole or in part:if the Supplier fails to deliver any or all of the Goods within the period specified in the Contract, or within any extension thereof granted by the Purchaser pursuant to GCC Clause 34;if the Supplier fails to perform any other obligation under the Contract; orif the Supplier, in the judgment of the Purchaser has engaged in fraud and corruption, as defined in GCC Clause 3, in competing for or in executing the Contract.In the event the Purchaser terminates the Contract in whole or in part, pursuant to GCC Clause 35.1(a), the Purchaser may procure, upon such terms and in such manner as it deems appropriate, Goods or Related Services similar to those undelivered or not performed, and the Supplier shall be liable to the Purchaser for any additional costs for such similar Goods or Related Services. However, the Supplier shall continue performance of the Contract to the extent not terminated. 35.2 Termination for Insolvency. The Purchaser may at any time terminate the Contract by giving notice to the Supplier if the Supplier becomes bankrupt or otherwise insolvent. In such event, termination will be without compensation to the Supplier, provided that such termination will not prejudice or affect any right of action or remedy that has accrued or will accrue thereafter to the Purchaser 35.3 Termination for Convenience. The Purchaser, by notice sent to the Supplier, may terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, at any time for its convenience. The notice of termination shall specify that termination is for the Purchaser’s convenience, the extent to which performance of the Supplier under the Contract is terminated, and the date upon which such termination becomes effective.The Goods that are complete and ready for shipment within twenty-eight (28) days after the Supplier’s receipt of notice of termination shall be accepted by the Purchaser at the Contract terms and prices. For the remaining Goods, the Purchaser may elect:to have any portion completed and delivered at the Contract terms and prices; and/orto cancel the remainder and pay to the Supplier an agreed amount for partially completed Goods and Related Services and for materials and parts previously procured by the Supplier. |
| 36. Assignment | 36.1 Neither the Purchaser nor the Supplier shall assign, in whole or in part, their obligations under this Contract, except with prior written consent of the other party. |
| 37. Export Restriction | 37.1 Notwithstanding any obligation under the Contract to complete all export formalities, any export restrictions attributable to the Purchaser, to the country of the Purchaser, or to the use of the products/goods, systems or services to be supplied, which arise from trade regulations from a country supplying those products/goods, systems or services, and which substantially impede the Supplier from meeting its obligations under the Contract, shall release the Supplier from the obligation to provide deliveries or services, always provided, however, that the Supplier can demonstrate to the satisfaction of the Purchaser and of the Bank that it has completed all formalities in a timely manner, including applying for permits, authorizations and licenses necessary for the export of the products/goods, systems or services under the terms of the Contract. Termination of the Contract on this basis shall be for the Purchaser’s convenience pursuant to Sub-Clause 35.3. |

**APPENDIX TO GENERAL CONDITIONS**

**Bank’s Policy- Corrupt and Fraudulent Practices**

***(text in this Appendix shall not be modified)***

**Guidelines for Procurement of Goods, Works, and Non-Consulting Services under IBRD Loans and IDA Credits & Grants by World Bank Borrowers, dated January 2011:**

“**Fraud and Corruption:**

1.16 It is the Bank’s policy to require that Borrowers (including beneficiaries of Bank loans), bidders, suppliers, contractors and their agents (whether declared or not), sub-contractors, sub-consultants, service providers or suppliers, and any personnel thereof, observe the highest standard of ethics during the procurement and execution of Bank-financed contracts.[[9]](#footnote-9) In pursuance of this policy, the Bank:

(a) defines, for the purposes of this provision, the terms set forth below as follows:

(i) “corrupt practice” is the offering, giving, receiving, or soliciting, directly or indirectly, of anything of value to influence improperly the actions of another party;[[10]](#footnote-10);

(ii) “fraudulent practice” is any act or omission, including a misrepresentation, that knowingly or recklessly misleads, or attempts to mislead, a party to obtain a financial or other benefit or to avoid an obligation;[[11]](#footnote-11)

(iii) “collusive practice” is an arrangement between two or more parties designed to achieve an improper purpose, including to influence improperly the actions of another party;[[12]](#footnote-12)

(iv) “coercive practice” is impairing or harming, or threatening to impair or harm, directly or indirectly, any party or the property of the party to influence improperly the actions of a party;[[13]](#footnote-13)

(v) "obstructive practice" is:

(aa) deliberately destroying, falsifying, altering, or concealing of evidence material to the investigation or making false statements to investigators in order to materially impede a Bank investigation into allegations of a corrupt, fraudulent, coercive or collusive practice; and/or threatening, harassing or intimidating any party to prevent it from disclosing its knowledge of matters relevant to the investigation or from pursuing the investigation, or

(bb) acts intended to materially impede the exercise of the Bank’s inspection and audit rights provided for under paragraph 1.16(e) below.

(b) will reject a proposal for award if it determines that the bidder recommended for award, or any of its personnel, or its agents, or its sub-consultants, sub-contractors, service providers, suppliers and/or their employees, has, directly or indirectly, engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices in competing for the contract in question;

(c) will declare misprocurement and cancel the portion of the loan allocated to a contract if it determines at any time that representatives of the Borrower or of a recipient of any part of the proceeds of the loan engaged in corrupt, fraudulent, collusive, coercive, or obstructive practices during the procurement or the implementation of the contract in question, without the Borrower having taken timely and appropriate action satisfactory to the Bank to address such practices when they occur, including by failing to inform the Bank in a timely manner at the time they knew of the practices;

(d) will sanction a firm or individual, at any time, in accordance with the prevailing Bank’s sanctions procedures,[[14]](#footnote-14) including by publicly declaring such firm or individual ineligible, either indefinitely or for a stated period of time: (i) to be awarded a Bank-financed contract; and (ii) to be a nominated[[15]](#footnote-15);

(e) will require that a clause be included in bidding documents and in contracts financed by a Bank loan, requiring bidders, suppliers and contractors, and their sub-contractors, agents, personnel, consultants, service providers, or suppliers, to permit the Bank to inspect all accounts, records, and other documents relating to the submission of bids and contract performance, and to have them audited by auditors appointed by the Bank.”

**.**

|  |  |
| --- | --- |
| Section IX. Special Conditions of Contract | |
| The following Special Conditions of Contract (SCC) shall supplement and / or amend the General Conditions of Contract (GCC). Whenever there is a conflict, the provisions herein shall prevail over those in the GCC*.* | |
| **GCC 1.1(i)** | The Purchaser’s country is: *Republic of North Macedonia* |
| **GCC 1.1(j)** | The Purchaser is:  **Government of the Republic of North Macedonia / Municipality of Veles** |
| **GCC 1.1 (o)** | The Project Site/Final Destination is:  **Lake Mladost, 1400 Veles** |
| **GCC 4.2 (a)** | The meaning of the trade terms shall be as prescribed by Incoterms. If the meaning of any trade term and the rights and obligations of the parties thereunder shall not be as prescribed by Incoterms, they shall be as prescribed by:  EXW, CIP, FCA, CFR, DAP, CIF |
| **GCC 4.2 (b)** | The version edition of Incoterms shall be *Incoterm 2020 published by ICC on 10.09.2019.* |
| **GCC 5.1** | The language shall be: *Macedonian* |
| **GCC 8.1** | For **notices**, the Purchaser’s address shall be:  Local and regional Competitiveness Project  Attention: Krzovska Olivera  Address: Miroslav Krleza 60/1, 1000 Skopje  Phone: +389 2 3280 457  e-mail address: [olivera.krzhovska@lrcp.org.mk/](mailto:olivera.krzhovska@lrcp.org.mk/) |
| **GCC 9.1** | The governing law shall be the law of*:* Republic of North Macedonia |
| **GCC 10.2** | The rules of procedure for arbitration proceedings pursuant to GCC Clause 10.2 shall be as follows:  ***Contract with Supplier national of the Purchaser’s country:***  In the case of a dispute between the Purchaser and a Supplier who is a national of the Purchaser’s country, the dispute shall be referred to adjudication or arbitration in accordance with the laws of the Purchaser’s country. |
| **GCC 13.1** | Details of Shipping and other Documents to be furnished by the Supplier are:   * + - 1. *Manufacturer’s or Supplier’s warranty certificate;*       2. *Insurance certificate;*   The above documents shall be received by the Purchaser before arrival of the Goods and, if not received, the Supplier will be responsible for any consequent expenses. |
| **GCC 15.1** | The prices charged for the Goods supplied and the related Services performed *shall not be* adjustable. |
| **GCC 16.1** | The method and conditions of payment to be made to the Supplier under this Contract shall be as follows:  Payment for Goods and Services supplied from within the Purchaser’s country shall be made in ***MKD*,** as follows:  (i) **Advance Payment:** Ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid within thirty (30) days of signing of the Contract against a simple receipt and a bank guarantee for the equivalent amount and in the form provided in the bidding documents or another form acceptable to the Purchaser.  (ii) **On Delivery:** Eighty (80) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid on receipt of the Goods and upon submission of the documents specified in GCC Clause 13.  (iii) **On Acceptance:** The remaining ten (10) percent of the Contract Price shall be paid to the Supplier within thirty (30) days after the date of the acceptance certificate for the respective delivery issued by the Purchaser. |
| **GCC 16.5** | The payment-delay period after which the Purchaser shall pay interest to the supplier shall be *30* days.  The interest rate that shall be applied is *0.05 %* |
| **GCC 18.1** | A Performance Security *shall be required*  *The amount of the Performance Security shall be: 10 % of the Contract amount* |
| **GCC 18.3** | If required, the Performance Security shall be in the form of : *a Demand Guarantee.*  If required, the Performance security shall be denominated in *the currencies of payment of the Contract, in accordance with their portions of the Contract Price.* |
| **GCC 18.4** | Discharge of the Performance Security shall take place: *after 12 months of the Contract date, period for fulfilling the conditions of service of the equipment and SaaS annual software services.* |
| **GCC 23.2** | The packing, marking and documentation within and outside the packages shall be:   1. *Original packing from Manufacturer required* 2. *Original markings in the packing required* 3. *User manual* 4. *Technical specification* |
| **GCC 24.1** | The insurance coverage shall be as specified in the Incoterms*.* |
| **GCC 25.1** | Responsibility for transportation of the Goods shall be as specified in the Incoterms. |
| **GCC 25.2** | Incidental services to be provided are:  (a) Transpiration of all goods to the final destination *Lake Mladost, Municipality of Veles*  (b) Installation of the equipment at the precise locations at *Lake Mladost, Municipality of Veles*  (c) All necessary works and configurations for successful operation of the system and formal hand-over.  (d) Training of the Purchaser’s personnel on-site, in start-up, operation, maintenance, and/or repair of the supplied Goods subject to routine and regular operations.  *The price quoted in the bid price or agreed with the selected Supplier shall be included in the Contract Price.* |
| **GCC 26.1** | The inspections and tests shall be:   * *Hardware delivery inspections* * *Hardware installation and functionality tests* * *Software functionality test* * *Integration inspection and testing (phased or bulk, depending on the proposed Project implementation plan)* * *Final acceptance test*   The methodology and testing scenarios shall be provided by the contractor through consultations with the beneficiary. The tests will be performed upon Supplier’s notification of successfully completed installation and configuration.  All rejected equipment shall be immediately removed from site, and not permitted to return unless adequately repaired and re-inspected. |
| **GCC 26.2** | The Inspections and tests shall be conducted at: *Lake Mladost, Municipality of Veles* |
| **GCC 27.1** | The liquidated damage shall be: 1% per week |
| **GCC 27.1** | The maximum amount of liquidated damages shall be: *5*% |
| **GCC 28.3** | The period of validity of the Warranty shall be: *36 months.*  The Supplier shall, in addition, comply with the performance and/or consumption guarantees specified under the Contract. If, for reasons attributable to the Supplier, these guarantees are not attained in whole or in part, the Supplier shall pay liquidated damages to the Purchaser with respect to the failure to meet the contractual guarantees. The rate of these liquidated damages shall be 5%.  For purposes of the Warranty, the place(s) of final destination(s) shall be:  *Lake Mladost, Municipality of Veles* |
| **GCC 28.5** | The period for repair or replacement shall be: *15* days. |

|  |
| --- |
| Section X. Contract Forms |

This Section contains forms which, once completed, will form part of the Contract. The forms for Performance Security and Advance Payment Security, when required, shall only be completed by the successful Bidder after contract award.

**Table of Forms**

[Letter of Acceptance 116](#_Toc348001569)

[1. Contract Agreement 117](#_Toc348001570)

[2. Performance Security 119](#_Toc348001571)

[3. Advance Payment Security 123](#_Toc348001573)

Letter of Acceptance

*[letterhead paper of the Purchaser]*

*[date]*

To: *[name and address of the Supplier]*

Subject: ***Notification of Award Contract No.***  . . . . . . . . . .

This is to notify you that your Bid dated . . . . ***[insert date] . .*** . . for execution of the . . . . . . . . . ***.[insert name of the contract and identification number, as given in the SCC]***. . . . . . . . . . for the Accepted Contract Amount of . . . . . . . . ***.[insert*** ***amount in numbers and words and name of currency]***, as corrected and modified in accordance with the Instructions to Bidders is hereby accepted by our Agency.

You are requested to furnish the Performance Security within 28 days in accordance with the Conditions of Contract, using for that purpose the of the Performance Security Form included in Section X, Contract Forms, of the Bidding Document.

Authorized Signature:

Name and Title of Signatory:

Name of Agency:

**Attachment: Contract Agreement**

Contract Agreement

*[The successful Bidder shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]*

THIS AGREEMENT made

the *[ insert:* ***number****]* day of *[ insert:* ***month****]*, *[ insert:* ***year****]*.

BETWEEN

(1) *[ insert complete name of Purchaser ]*, a *[ insert description of type of legal entity, for example, an agency of the Ministry of .... of the Government of { insert name of Country of Purchaser }, or corporation incorporated under the laws of { insert name of Country of Purchaser } ]* and having its principal place of business at *[ insert address of Purchaser**]* (hereinafter called “the Purchaser”), of the one part, and

(2) *[ insert name of Supplier**]*, a corporation incorporated under the laws of *[ insert: country of Supplier**]* and having its principal place of business at *[ insert: address of Supplier ]* (hereinafter called “the Supplier”), of the other part :

WHEREAS the Purchaser invited bids for certain Goods and ancillary services, viz., *[insert brief description of Goods and Services]* and has accepted a Bid by the Supplier for the supply of those Goods and Services

The Purchaser and the Supplier agree as follows:

1. In this Agreement words and expressions shall have the same meanings as are respectively assigned to them in the Contract documents referred to.

2. The following documents shall be deemed to form and be read and construed as part of this Agreement. This Agreement shall prevail over all other contract documents.

1. the Letter of Acceptance
2. the Letter of Bid
3. the Addenda Nos.\_\_\_\_\_ (if any)
4. Special Conditions of Contract
5. General Conditions of Contract
6. the Specification (including Schedule of Requirements and Technical Specifications)
7. the completed Schedules (including Price Schedules)
8. any other document listed in GCC as forming part of the Contract

3. In consideration of the payments to be made by the Purchaser to the Supplier as specified in this Agreement, the Supplier hereby covenants with the Purchaser to provide the Goods and Services and to remedy defects therein in conformity in all respects with the provisions of the Contract.

4. The Purchaser hereby covenants to pay the Supplier in consideration of the provision of the Goods and Services and the remedying of defects therein, the Contract Price or such other sum as may become payable under the provisions of the Contract at the times and in the manner prescribed by the Contract.

IN WITNESS whereof the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed in accordance with the laws of *[insert the name of the Contract governing law country]* on the day, month and year indicated above.

For and on behalf of the Purchaser

Signed: *[insert signature]*

in the capacity of *[ insert title or other appropriate designation ]*

in the presence of *[insert identification of official witness]*

For and on behalf of the Supplier

Signed: *[insert signature of authorized representative(s) of the Supplier]*

in the capacity of *[ insert title or other appropriate designation ]*

in the presence of *[ insert identification of official witness]*

Performance Security

**Option 1: (Bank Guarantee)**

*[The bank, as requested by the successful Bidder, shall fill in this form in accordance with the instructions indicated]*

*[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]*

**Beneficiary:** *[insert name and Address of Purchaser ]*

**Date:** \_ *[Insert date of issue]*

**PERFORMANCE GUARANTEE No.:** *[Insert guarantee reference number]*

**Guarantor:** *[Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]*

We have been informed that \_ *[insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture]* (hereinafter called "the Applicant") has entered into Contract No. *[insert reference number of the contract]* dated *[insert date]* with the Beneficiary, for the supply of \_ *[insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services]* (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, a performance guarantee is required.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount in figures]*( ) *[insert amount in words]*,[[16]](#footnote-16)1 such sum being payable in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary’s complying demand supported by the Beneficiary’s statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating that the Applicant is in breach of its obligation(s) under the Contract, without the Beneficiary needing to prove or to show grounds for your demand or the sum specified therein.

This guarantee shall expire, no later than the …. Day of ……, 2… [[17]](#footnote-17)2, and any demand for payment under it must be received by us at this office indicated above on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No. 758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_   
*[signature(s)]*

***Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.***

PLEASE DELETE THIS FORM

By this Bond *[insert name of Principal]* as Principal (hereinafter called “the Supplier”) and *[insert name of Surety]* as Surety (hereinafter called “the Surety”), are held and firmly bound unto *[insert name of Purchaser]* as Obligee (hereinafter called “the Supplier”) in the amount of *[insert amount in words and figures]*, for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made in the types and proportions of currencies in which the Contract Price is payable, the Supplier and the Surety bind themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, jointly and severally, firmly by these presents.

WHEREAS the Contractor has entered into a written Agreement with the Purchaser dated the day of , 20 , for *[name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services]* in accordance with the documents, plans, specifications, and amendments thereto, which to the extent herein provided for, are by reference made part hereof and are hereinafter referred to as the Contract.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Condition of this Obligation is such that, if the Supplier shall promptly and faithfully perform the said Contract (including any amendments thereto), then this obligation shall be null and void; otherwise, it shall remain in full force and effect. Whenever the Supplier shall be, and declared by the Purchaser to be, in default under the Contract, the Purchaser having performed the Purchaser’s obligations thereunder, the Surety may promptly remedy the default, or shall promptly:

(1) complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions; or

(2) obtain a Bid or bids from qualified Bidders for submission to the Purchaser for completing the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions, and upon determination by the Purchaser and the Surety of the lowest responsive Bidder, arrange for a Contract between such Bidder and Purchaser and make available as work progresses (even though there should be a default or a succession of defaults under the Contract or Contracts of completion arranged under this paragraph) sufficient funds to pay the cost of completion less the Balance of the Contract Price; but not exceeding, including other costs and damages for which the Surety may be liable hereunder, the amount set forth in the first paragraph hereof. The term “Balance of the Contract Price,” as used in this paragraph, shall mean the total amount payable by Purchaser to Supplier under the Contract, less the amount properly paid by Purchaser to Contractor; or

(3) pay the Purchaser the amount required by Purchaser to complete the Contract in accordance with its terms and conditions up to a total not exceeding the amount of this Bond.

The Surety shall not be liable for a greater sum than the specified penalty of this Bond.

Any suit under this Bond must be instituted before the expiration of one year from the date of the issuing of the Taking-Over Certificate.

No right of action shall accrue on this Bond to or for the use of any person or corporation other than the Purchaser named herein or the heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns of the Purchaser.

In testimony whereof, the Supplier has hereunto set his hand and affixed his seal, and the Surety has caused these presents to be sealed with his corporate seal duly attested by the signature of his legal representative, this day of 20 .

SIGNED ON on behalf of

By in the capacity of

In the presence of

SIGNED ON on behalf of

By in the capacity of

In the presence of

Advance Payment Security

*[Guarantor letterhead or SWIFT identifier code]*

**Beneficiary:** *[Insert name and Address of Purchaser]*

**Date:** *[Insert date of issue]*

**ADVANCE PAYMENT GUARANTEE No.:** *[Insert guarantee reference number]*

**Guarantor:**  *[Insert name and address of place of issue, unless indicated in the letterhead]*

We have been informed that *[insert name of Supplier, which in the case of a joint venture shall be the name of the joint venture]* (hereinafter called “the Applicant”) has entered into Contract No. *[insert reference number of the contract]* dated *[insert date]* with the Beneficiary, for the execution of *[insert name of contract and brief description of Goods and related Services]* (hereinafter called "the Contract").

Furthermore, we understand that, according to the conditions of the Contract, an advance payment in the sum *[insert amount in figures]* () *[insert amount in words]* is to be made against an advance payment guarantee.

At the request of the Applicant, we as Guarantor, hereby irrevocably undertake to pay the Beneficiary any sum or sums not exceeding in total an amount of *[insert amount in figures]*( ) *[insert amount in words][[18]](#footnote-18)1* upon receipt by us of the Beneficiary’s complying demand supported by the Beneficiary’s statement, whether in the demand itself or in a separate signed document accompanying or identifying the demand, stating either that the Applicant:

* + 1. has used the advance payment for purposes other than toward delivery of Goods; or
    2. has failed to repay the advance payment in accordance with the Contract conditions, specifying the amount which the Applicant has failed to repay.

A demand under this guarantee may be presented as from the presentation to the Guarantor of a certificate from the Beneficiary’s bank stating that the advance payment referred to above has been credited to the Applicant on its account number *[insert number]* at *[insert name and address of Applicant’s bank]*.

The maximum amount of this guarantee shall be progressively reduced by the amount of the advance payment repaid by the Applicant as specified in copies of interim statements or payment certificates which shall be presented to us. This guarantee shall expire, at the latest, upon our receipt of a copy of the interim payment certificate indicating that ninety (90) percent of the Accepted Contract Amount, has been certified for payment, or on the *[insert day]* day of *[insert month]*, 2 *[insert year]*, whichever is earlier. Consequently, any demand for payment under this guarantee must be received by us at this office on or before that date.

This guarantee is subject to the Uniform Rules for Demand Guarantees (URDG) 2010 Revision, ICC Publication No.758, except that the supporting statement under Article 15(a) is hereby excluded.

.

\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_\_   
*[signature(s)]*

***Note: All italicized text (including footnotes) is for use in preparing this form and shall be deleted from the final product.***

1. [↑](#footnote-ref-1)
2. *Bidder to use as appropriate* In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper. [↑](#footnote-ref-2)
3. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “*another party*” refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, “*public official*” includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions. [↑](#footnote-ref-3)
4. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “party” refers to a public official; the terms “benefit” and “obligation” relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the “act or omission” is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution. [↑](#footnote-ref-4)
5. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “parties” refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other’s bid prices or other conditions. [↑](#footnote-ref-5)
6. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “party” refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution. [↑](#footnote-ref-6)
7. A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank’s sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines. [↑](#footnote-ref-7)
8. A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower. [↑](#footnote-ref-8)
9. In this context, any action to influence the procurement process or contract execution for undue advantage is improper. [↑](#footnote-ref-9)
10. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “*another party*” refers to a public official acting in relation to the procurement process or contract execution. In this context, “*public official*” includes World Bank staff and employees of other organizations taking or reviewing procurement decisions. [↑](#footnote-ref-10)
11. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “party” refers to a public official; the terms “benefit” and “obligation” relate to the procurement process or contract execution; and the “act or omission” is intended to influence the procurement process or contract execution. [↑](#footnote-ref-11)
12. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “parties” refers to participants in the procurement process (including public officials) attempting either themselves, or through another person or entity not participating in the procurement or selection process, to simulate competition or to establish bid prices at artificial, non-competitive levels, or are privy to each other’s bid prices or other conditions. [↑](#footnote-ref-12)
13. For the purpose of this sub-paragraph, “party” refers to a participant in the procurement process or contract execution. [↑](#footnote-ref-13)
14. A firm or individual may be declared ineligible to be awarded a Bank financed contract upon: (i) completion of the Bank’s sanctions proceedings as per its sanctions procedures, including, inter alia, cross-debarment as agreed with other International Financial Institutions, including Multilateral Development Banks, and through the application the World Bank Group corporate administrative procurement sanctions procedures for fraud and corruption; and (ii) as a result of temporary suspension or early temporary suspension in connection with an ongoing sanctions proceeding. See footnote 14 and paragraph 8 of Appendix 1 of these Guidelines. [↑](#footnote-ref-14)
15. A nominated sub-contractor, consultant, manufacturer or supplier, or service provider (different names are used depending on the particular bidding document) is one which has either been: (i) included by the bidder in its pre-qualification application or bid because it brings specific and critical experience and know-how that allow the bidder to meet the qualification requirements for the particular bid; or (ii) appointed by the Borrower. [↑](#footnote-ref-15)
16. *1 The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the percentage of the Accepted Contract Amount specified in the Letter of Acceptance, and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the Contract or a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Beneficiary.* [↑](#footnote-ref-16)
17. *2 Insert the date twenty-eight days after the expected completion date as described in GC Clause 18.4. The Purchaser should note that in the event of an extension of this date for completion of the Contract, the Purchaser would need to request an extension of this guarantee from the Guarantor. Such request must be in writing and must be made prior to the expiration date established in the guarantee. In preparing this guarantee, the Purchaser might consider adding the following text to the form, at the end of the penultimate paragraph: “The Guarantor agrees to a one-time extension of this guarantee for a period not to exceed [six months][one year], in response to the Beneficiary’s written request for such extension, such request to be presented to the Guarantor before the expiry of the guarantee.”* [↑](#footnote-ref-17)
18. 1 *The Guarantor shall insert an amount representing the amount of the advance payment and denominated either in the currency(ies) of the advance payment as specified in the Contract, or in a freely convertible currency acceptable to the Purchaser.* [↑](#footnote-ref-18)